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this order and the Court's already considered it. We're
actually just seeking a decision as to the scope of the JPI as
it concerns those other properties. We're not asking you to
change your prior order. We're just asking you to expand it
and consider all those things.

They make some arguments about the -- the ELN Trust,
that we don't have any interest in Russell Road, and the
Wyoming Downs property. I've already -- we've already set
forth the facts. You've heard about those properties and the
transfers a hundred times before. I won't go back into the
specifics of those.

But the bottom line is on those that you haven't
made that decisicon yet as to what the interests are. That's
still open for a tracing and debate. And so until that
decision i1s made, the -- we need to keep -- make sure that
those properties are protected.

So what we've asked for is that the Court enter a
joint preliminary injunction and we set forth the specific
language that -- that we propose that is hereby ordered that
no property list in the decree of divorce entered June 3rd,
2013 is to be transferred, encumbered, concealed, sold, or
otherwise disposed of without a written agreement between the
parties or further order of the Court to ensure the properties

remain intact prior to the completion of the tracing.
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And then in the alternative —-- and I -- I don't
think this is appropriate I -- I -- but if you weren't
inclined tc enjoin all the property, which is subject to a
claim of community interest, then we would ask at the very
least that you ensure that there is at least half the property
enjoined and that would mean enjoining everything that was
awarded to Lyn -- Lynita as part of a -- a half -- a half
property division in the decree of divorce.

But again, with changing values and changing facts
and circumstances, I don't know if that's going to be
sufficient. We don't know what the tracing's going to
provide. And property is unique. So we would ask that you
enjoin all that.

Did you want me to respond to their counter or or
wait for them and --

THE COURT: Why don't we give them a chance --

MR. KARACSONYI: Yeah.

THE COURT: -- and then we'll do that. So --

MR. KARACSONYI: Go piece-by-piece?

THE COURT: Because -- yeah, because we got so many
issues on that. We can --

MR. KARACSONYI: Thanks.

MR. LUSZECK: Your Honor, this is the third time

that they have been asking for the exact same relief which is
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for JPI over the -- all over the property that's owned by the
ELN Trust and it's inappropriate

You kncw, even in the last order this Court said
okay, I'm going to impose a JPI, but just over BanOne and
Lindell. But apparently that's not enough and they want a JPI
over all of the property, even property that's -- can't be
subject to a community property interest which includes
Wyoming Downs.

I mean, we've -- I don't know how many times we've
argued these facts before Your Honor, but the Wyoming Downs
property was subject to a separate order. This Court found
that it was the ELN Trust -- well, it -- it found that it was
property of the ELN Trust, there was no community property
interest, and that even if it was to be considered separate
property, it was Eric's separate property. It was not
remanded by the Nevada Supreme Court. She has absoclutely no
eﬂtitlement to a community property interest to it, but if
this Court grants the requested relief today, they would even
get a JPI over that property, Wyoming Downs, which is
completely inappropriate.

Your Honor, the Nevada Supreme Court made it clear.
The self-settled spendthrift trust were funded with each
property separate which -- with each -- with Eric's separate

property created the ELN self-settled spendthrift trust,
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Lynita's separate property, funded Lynita's self-settled
spendthrift trust.

Because of that, we're starting off with the
proposition that it's separate property. I concede that in a
regular divorce case you can impose a JPI over property that's
titled in the name of the husband or in the name of the wife.
That's not the circumstance here. The property that's owned
isn't owned by them individually. It's owned by trusts,
separate and distinct legal entities that the Court has -- the
Nevada Supreme Court has already found what's funded with --
with each of their separate property.

So because of that, T think it's inappropriate to
treat this like any other divorce case by finding -- by making
some type of finding that it's community property, especially
after the Nevada Supreme Court said that wasn't the case. I
concede that a tracing needs to be done, but the tracing is
going to be limited to whether or not Eric had any assets in
his name individually that were transferred into this trust in
conversely with Lynita. Other than that, the assets owned in
the trust maintain their separate property nature unless it's
proven by clear and convincing evidence that that's not the
case. And that hasn't happened throughout this litigation.

So for that reason, it's inappropriate to enter a JPI over

each and every piece of property that's owned by the ELN
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Trust.

Irconically, Counsel mentioned the fact that there
should be a JPI over the LSN Trust now. Well, the fact of the
matter is that she sold a lot of her assets, so it's gone.

The Palmyra house, gone. It was sold. So it's -- you know,
this Court -- there's really nothing for this Court to impose
a JPI on from her side, because it's all gone.

The -- the 720,000 I -- I assume that he's
requesting a JPI over that as well. Your Honor, this Court
has specifically addressed that in the April -- or sorry, the
May 22nd order had a whole section on it and it said it wasn't
going to impose a JPI, yet here we are once again and they're
asking for the exact same relief. TIf this Court is inclined
to impose any type of JPI on it, I think it has to impose some
type of bond that needs to be paid by -- by Lynita Nelson or
the LSN Trust.

The fact of the matter is because this property is
being held up in this litigation, the ELN Trust is losing
millions of dollars, Your Honor. It is suffering irreparable
damage because it's just being held in abeyance because of all
the claims that are being brought. If she wants a JPI, fine,
but this Court can impose a JPI -- or sorry, pose a bond and
require a bond pursuant to NRCP 53. It's what's happens all

the time in any case with preliminary injunctions or temporary
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restraining orders. It's not uncommon to do.

Once again, if the —-- if the property was titled in
their names individually and if it clearly was community
property, I wouldn't have an issue with it. But it's titled
in the name of separate entities, the ELN Trust or the LSN
Trust, which there's no community property interest in.

Further, Your Honor, with respect to the lis pendens
issue, the problem that I have -- well, I have another -- a
number of issues with that. First, after this Court came out
in the May 22nd, 2018 order, the Court said okay, I'm only
going to impose a JPI over BanOne and Lindell. So guess what
the LSN Trust does? They =-- they file a lis pendens over all
of the property owned by the ELN Trust, almost just snubbing
their nose in the Court's face. I mean, I can only imagine
what the arguments would be from that side if this had been
done by Eric or the ELN Trust.

So this Court says no, I'm doing the JPI over
Lindell, BanOne, and what =-- what happens? We get a lis
pendens over all the properties. We get a lis pendens over
all the property. Even Bella Kathryn, Your Honor, which this
Court I'm sure will recall, she wanted nothing to do with.
The LSN Trust had -- wanted nothing to do with Bella Kathryn.
They fought to make sure that it ended up on the ELN Trust's

-- gosh, side -- side of the equation with respect to the
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divorce decree. She wanted nothing to do with it. And now
all of a sudden she's filing a lis pendens on the Bella
Kathryn property? It's ridiculous, Your Honcr. This needs to
stop.

If this Court's inclined to impose a JPI on any
additional property, which I disagree with because I don't
think -- in -- in a matter of equity and a matter of law and
however you want to look at it, Your Honor, I think it's
inappropriate. But if this Court is inclined to impose a JPI
in any other property, it has to be limited to Russell Road
and I think that would even been appropriate. But this Court
should impose a bond over all of those assets as well.

It's not unheard for courts to impose bonds on
property that's being held up pursuant to a TRO or a
preliminary injunction. I think it's only equitable for this
Court to do in this case, especially because of the money
that's being lost as a result of the same.

THE COURT: Do you have a position on this or --

MS. FORSBERG: Your Honor --

THE COURT: -- that's kind of --

MS. FORSBERG: -- just --

THE COURT: -- of the Trust --

MS. FORSBERG: -- one -- one point is that I think

the Court can't lose sight of the fact that part of what ELN
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does 1i1s buy and sell property. I mean, that is the business.
I mean, by ham -- you know, hamstringing their entire business
by these lis pendens and JPIs.

MR. KARACSONYI: Okay.

THE COURT: Reply.

MR. KARACSONYI: First of all, this isn't the third
time. This was brought up initially at a hearing and you
reserved the right to -- to -- or you took it under
submission. The first time you made a decision regarding the
JPI was when you issued the May 22nd decision just covering
the BanCne and the Lindell properties which you specifically
salid were the only properties you were considering.

Wyoming Downs, we ——- we have argued about it a lot
of times. But the fact of the matter is that the supreme
court held that a tracing needs to occur to determine whether
the properties in the trust are community property or separate
property. And I don't see anywhere in that order where they
say that this excludes Wyoming Downs, which was acquired
during the marriage and prior to the divorce.

All property that these people acquired during their

marriage is presumed to be community property. And the way

they've tried to characterize the tracing is -- is not in
accordance with Nevada law. What -- even if you start with
the presumption or that the -- that the Nevada Supreme Court

D-09-411537-D NELSON 07/23/2018 TRANSCRIPT (SEALED)
VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC (520) 303-7356

15

PSAPP0447



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

made a factual finding that all the property in 2001 was
separate property, you have to be able to trace any property
acquired during marriage to that same separate property. So
the property owned at the date of divorce would need to be
traced back to that separate property. If it couldn't be
traced back to that separate property, then it's -- then it's
presumptively community property. And then you have issues of
transfers and why they occurred.

You'll find actually that -- well, they mentioned
that these properties were titled in the ELN Trust. I think
the facts are going to bear out that a lot of these properties
were titled in the LSN Trust and I think the testimony has
always been clear and it will be clear or -- or -- if the
Court takes additional evidence that she didn't transfer these
for a transmutation of community property. She transferred
this property because she was told that it was going to be
community property, so no transmutation has occurred.

The bottom line is in every divorce you may have --
you're going to have trusts, especially with people of some
affluence and they're going to have property in trust. And
those pecple are entitled to the same protections as anybody
else who appears before this Court.

Just because you were reversed on appeal and we're

sitting here 10 years later and people are a little worn out
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and this has been going on a long time doesn't mean that she's
not entitled to the same protection today that she was
entitled to on day one. And so we're asking for those same
protections that she was entitled to on day one because that's
really where we find ourselves as far as a tracing goes.

Now they mentioned the Palmyra property. The
Palmyra property interestingly is the only property that was
still owned at the date of divorce that was listed in the
separate property agreement. So that's the one property out
of all the property that really was separate property.

Now the bond issue. And they -- and they brought
this up and responded in the -- in the opposition, but they've
never been required to post a bond. They only required to
post a bond one time on appeal was the order that you issued
400,000 back to us.

If you'll recall, even though you're suppcsed to
post a bond on appeal, what you did with the properties
pending appeal is you said that I'm going to transfer some of
the properties, not Russell Road, but I'm going to order that
they not be transferred or cumbered -- encumbered or sold.

I'm going to order that you don't transfer, encumber, or sell
Russell Road. So basically what you did is vyou used the —--
the actual real properties as the bond for themselves.

We're not asking for the -- any of this to be sold
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or -—- or encumbered. We're -- we're asking for it to be --
for you not to encumber or sell it. We're not asking for it
to be transferred to us, but there shouldn't be a bond in
place. There's not reguirement for a bond and a bond would
have a chilling effect in divorce actions, especially if one
party couldn't pay the bond. So the —-- there's specific rules
for JPIs and for maintaining the status guo on property that
are unigue to divorce and we're relying on those rules.

Now the lis pendens, the lis pendens meets all the
requirements of NRS 14.015. And that's why I say again, Jjust
because we're here 10 years later deoesn't mean she's not
entitled to the same protections as day one. She has
satisfied everyone of those factors. And, you know, there's
been no response, there's been nothing to show that she
hasn't. And real property is unique and this is the same
argument they made to you, Your Honor, is don't -- make sure
that she can't transfer this property pending appeal because
this is unique. It's unique then. It should be unique now.
And it -- -- she is going to suffer irreparable harm if it's
lost, just as they were going to suffer irreparable harm.

And so she's met all the requirements of a lis
pendens to ensure that it doesn't get transferred. And why
did she have to file the lis pendens? Because before you even

had the transfer due date, she was getting notices from title
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companies that he's trying to transfer the BanOne properties.
She's going to be irreparably harmed. The property will be
gone. So we need to protect this property and she's legally
entitled to have a lis pendens pending —-- pending appeal in
this action she claims. And this action affects the title or
possession of real property described in the lis pendens. The
action was not brought in bad faith. I think we can agree
there. She would be able to perform any conditions precedent
to the release sought as it affects the title of property. She
would definitely be able to assume the title.

She would be irreparably injured as they conceded
during the appeal and she's likely to prevail in this che --
action or has a fair chance. And for a lis pendens, as they
pointed out, the burden is really low, to the satisfaction of
the Court. If you find those factors are met, she's entitled
to this lis pendens.

Again, I know it's been 10 years, it's been a long
time, but please afford us the same -- we're asking to please
be afforded the same protections as if we're here on day one
even though it has been a long time.

So we hope that the Court will -- will properly
protect Lynita during the pendency of this action to ensure
that whatever happens at the end of the day that you can make

it happen and that we're not with an order and then trying to
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scramble to find out what happened and where the property

went.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. LUSZECK: Your Honor, with respect to Wyoming
Downs, it's, you know, Page 6 and 7 of -- of my opposition.

This Court had a separate evidentiary hearing on Wyoming
Downs, Your Honor. In that order, this Court specifically
found that there is no transmutation of Wyoming Downs from
separate property, community property. Even assuming that
Wyoming Downs was separate property of the ELN, Eric Nelson
and not the property of the ELN Trust.

THE COURT: Are you referring to Page 6 of your --

MR. LUSZECK: Yeah.

THE COURT: -- of your position?

MR, LUSZECK: Lynita -- Lynita appealed that order.
And the Court upheld the order, Your Honor. So this argument
that somehow the Nevada Supreme Court ordered that that issue
to be traced is false because the Court never overturned the
September 22nd, 2014 order. In fact, the -- the Supreme Court
specifically said we have considered the parties' other
arguments which would have included Lynita's argument with
respect to Wyoming Downs to include there without merit.

So this fallacy that somehow Wyoming Downs is

included in this tracing and that somehow she has a community
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interest in that is false and it's completely contrary to the
Nevada Supreme Court's decision. It upheld the September
22nd, 2014 order, period.

With respect to the argument that trust are always
parties to a divorce proceeding. Well, that may be the case
with the simple revocable trust. That's not what we have
here. We have complex irrevocable trusts which have a whole
different set of law under NRS 166. So you can't treat these
self-settled spendthrift trusts which the supreme court has
found to be valid the same way as you would a simple revocable
trust. They are completely different concepts and trusts.

With respect to the bond issue, how, you know,
Counsel's argument that that somehow is going to have a
chilling effect on divorce, one, I disagree, but even if
that's the case, Your Honor, if -- if the LSN Trust can't post
a bond now which would really be de minimis in light of the

ultimate damages that can be proven later, then how is she

going to be able to -- to pay damages down the road? How is
the ELN Trust going to be -- going to be protected and
compensated if we -- if -- if all of the evidence shows that

it was the separate property and there's no community property

interest therein?
She should have to post a bond to protect the ELN

Trust down the road, just like she's asking for protection,
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the ELN Trust needs to be protected as well, Your Honor. And
that's why a bond has to be posted now. The ELN Trust was
required to post one during appeal. LSN Trust should be
ordered to post one as well.

And with respect to the lis pendens issue, I think
Ms. Forsberg may deal with that on a little more issue.

But she's not likely to prevail. There's not even a
reasonably likelihood that she's going to prevail in this
instance, Your Honor, because it is clear that it was separate
property by the Nevada Supreme Court, so they have to prove by
clear and convincing evidence that it was transmutated from
separate to community property and there's no evidence that
that occurred, Yocur Honor.

MS. FORSBERG: Your Honor, a couple issues on the --
the lis pendens issue. I -- I think opposing Counsel fails to
recognize that the Supreme Court has already ruled that those
properties have to go back. And this Court ordered you need
to do the deeds back. Instead of that -- and this Court also
found that there was sufficient property in the list to
compensate for anything that might have been found. But
instead, they want all of this frozen when the Supreme Court
has already ruled that it should go back. 1Instead, they're
kind of circumventing the Supreme Court by filing these lis

pendens. Those lis pendens need to be removed so that
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business contin -- can continue as usual.

Everything is not going to go anywhere at any time.
If you buy and you sell property, you're going to sell one
thing and then buy something else. I mean, that's how they
make money. That was -- that's how they became successful to
begin with. This Court knows that was Mr. Nelson's acumen,
that that's how he takes to press properties and purchase them
and that's part of the -- the issue.

But for them to put a lis pendens, now that stops
that whole process. And they're failing to recognize that the

Supreme Coutrt has already ruled those need to go back. So I

think they're -- you know, they have enough security already
in the amount of property that is available. Even -- even
without -- with -- releasing those lis pendens, they have

sufficient property. This Court has already ruled that they
have sufficient property on that. So them doing a lis pendens
is another thing of snubbing their nose at this Court's
ruling.

THE COURT: Thank you. All right. With regard to
our next issue. I think we wanted to address the Lynita
running Lindell and her paying rent. Is that --

MR. KARACSONYI: Yes, Your Honor. Ms. Nelson has
managed the Lindell property for the last four years.

THE COURT: 2013, right, I think?
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MR. KARACSONYI: That's correct. And she's —- she's
loved and cared for for this property and she's really poured

her heart and soul into it. When she took it over, and we --

we attached the pictures and -- and I know the Court -- the
Court didn't like us saying that she -- that he was a -- a
slum landlord. We won't say that with -- with regard to this

property, but there was graffiti on the building, years of
pigeon droppings on the rocf, cracks and peeling of the paint,
and unprofessional sign that you saw and that she's replaced
with a very nice sign, trash collecting outside. A Clark
County Building Department violations that noted that the

building would be shutdown in 30 days if it wasn't brought

into con -- compliance, homeless people sleeping or living in
the steering gar -- well, taggers regularly climbing on the
roof and -- and graffitiing the building and windows, breaking

into suites, and leaving behind drug paraphernalia, food, and
even feces.

So it -- she's really poured her heart and soul into
this. Yes, she's put a lot of money into it, but she's done
it so she can bring it to where it is today. And today, it's
a beautiful building with a beautiful sign. And it's
profitable. And it's attracting the type of tenants who are
going to stay a long time, renew their lease, pay their rent.

THE COURT: I think you said there's only one
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vacancy at the point --

MR. KARACSONYI: That's correct.

THE COURT: -- in time?
MR. KARACSONYI: That's correct. And -- and if you
had -- had the rents, and -- and what we said is if you had

the rents from 201, even with all the upgrades and
improvements, if he had paid the hundred and eighty-eight
thousand eight hundred dollars since June 3rd, 2013 when the
property was transferred, well, then you wouldn't have this
negative situation. It would have even covered all the
improvements that had brought the property to where it is
today.

Sc we ask that she continue -- be able to continue
to manage the property. We ask for a 10 percent property
management fee. And you previously found this sum to be
reasonable for him. Now they -- they do some play on words,
that she's asking for gross rents, but if you lock at your
order from the hearing, which we quoted in the -- in the
reply, it's the exact -- exact same thing that you awarded to
him which was 10 percent of the rents, the gross profit, and
then less the expenses, the 10 percent of was one of the
expenses.

But -- so it's no different than what they asked for

before. And we ask that there is a lease entered into by Eric
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and the ELN Trust because we need to have these rights and
obligations and we -- they need to be responsible for rent.
They can't take advantage of the fact that they're an owner
because they're only a half owner. And them taking advantage
-- advance =-- advantage of being an owner is taking advantage
of her and her rights.

And then we ask that you prohibit Eric from
communicating with the tenants about the occcupancy because
obviously that would create issues within the building and he
has been telling tenants that I believe from what she's been
informed that =-- that he is the exhusband and -- and to come
to him with issues

Now they asked to —-- to manage it and to -- to do it
for free. The reason they're making this offer is because
they're going to make money on —-- on the other end doing
business, the way that he always did business, and that's
making sure that there's no profits and that all kinds of
expenses including children's health insurance and all the
other expenses that we saw being paid through the business
last time are paid through the business last time are paid
through the business again and at the end of the day she gets
nil. And so that is to her detriment and has always been to
her detriment whenever he's in charge of things.

And so we allow that -- we ask that you not allow
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that to happen again, but he needs to pay rent and she should
be able to continue to manage the property going forward.
THE COURT: Do you want that rent to go back to June

3rd, 2013 I think is what you're asking?

MR, KARACSONYI: Yeah -- yes. If -- if the Court's
inclined -- but you did incline -- say that you may be
inclined to do the offsets later. The -- the most important

part is that it's going forward. But yeah, 1if the rent can be
caught current -- current, that would be great as well. And
-- and you remind me one other point. I apologize for -- for
backtracking, but they said that they should only be required
to pay 1600. That doesn't —-- that's not how it works, because
you're not factoring in to the overall expenses of the
building. You pay in your 3200 intc the general pool of
monies and then you may not necessarily get 1600 profit from
that 32 because all the expenses for the building are going to
be paid. And whatever is left at the end of the day, you get
one-half of that amount. And so doing it the way they're
suggesting would only deprive her of -- of being able to get
her full portion or benefit of that rent, the 3200.

THE COURT: Thank you. The Trust?

MR. LUSZECK: Your Honor, I know this is kind of
paraphrasing, but I think the argument to some degree is is

Eric can't manage it because if he does that he's going to
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make sure there's no profits and ensure at the end of the day
that Lynita gets nil because that's always been the way when
Eric's in charge.

Your Honor, if you've looked at the numbers, that's
exactly the situation since Lynita has been running Lindell.
There has been no profits. She has dumped over a hundred and
seventy-thousands dollars into that building and she's make --
she's collecting less in rent today than she was when Eric --
the ELN Trust transferred those property to her back in 2014,
Your Honor.

If you look at the rent roles, if you just compare
Exhibit 4 which is the accounting that they provided back in
2015 with the current rent roles, unit 101 in July of 2016 was
collecting $1,600 a month. So Lynita dumps a hundred and
seventy thousand dollars into Lindell. Guess how much it's
collecting in rent now? $1,102. Unit 102, $800 a month. The
lease that -- that she entered into now is for $616 a month.
Unit 103, $800 a month back in 2014. ©Now it's =-- I think it's

around 650 a month. It's a little hard to tell based on the

accounting. I mean, it's -- it's an absolute joke, Your
Honor.

In December of 2008 -- or 'l7, the LSN Trust
collected $5,529. You compare that to July, August -- or

July, August, September fo 2014, it collected 57,800 a month.
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So she's thrown in a hundred and seventy thousand dollars in
maintenance and repairs and she's collecting less money than
the ELN Trust was when apparently the ~-- the Lindell was in a
horrible status and nobecdy wanted to -- to be tenants, Sir
it's simply not the case.

I mean, the business loss, Your Honor, is just
inexcusable. You know, it's interesting because when the ELN
Trust was managing Lindell, and this court I'm -- I'm sure
will certainly recall at one point the ELN Trust tried to get
an offset for maintenance and repairs. And do you remember
what the argument there was, Your Honor? It's so
unreasonable. How can the ELN Trust this month's for
maintenance and repairs? Well, that's a small fraction
compared to what the LSN Trust has charged.

And this Court actually found that it wasn't even
going to award the ELN Trust, all of the maintenance and
repairs, because it found it to be excessive. And now in four
years or five years they have incurred a hundred and
seventy-five thousand dollars in debt to make Lindell not
prefitable.

And with respect to Lynita and the LSN Trust, I
don't even know if she's properly licensed. I don't know if
she has a license to manager the property. I don't know if

she has business licenses. I don't know if she has any of
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that. Maybe she does. I don't know. But it makes no sense
for Lindell to pay her a -- or the ELN Trust to make sure she
receives a 10 percent management fee when it's willing to do
it for free. If she wants to do it for free, maybe that
changes the equation to some degree.

But the ELN Trust shouldn't have to pay her
management fee to do something that it's willing to do for
free, especially with respect to the unit that it's renting,
on the second floor. So even if this Court ordered that it
start paying $3200 a month, it's going to have to pay Lynita
$320 a month to manage the property. I don't know what if
anything she's doing with respect to unit 201 where the ELN
Trust operates out of. So it wouldn't be appropriate for her
to do that.

With respect to paying rent, Your Honor, if this
Court is inclined to order the ELN to start paying rent. AS
Mr. Karacsonyi indicated, the LSN Trust already owes the ELN
Trust 4 to $500,000. So to the extent this Court wants to
start ordering that those payments be made, it should be
deducted from the amount. It should be offset so that the ELN
Trust doesn't have to keep writing a -- a -- write a check
every month to the LSN Trust. It should be deducted from the
4 or $500,000 that this Court already recognized should not

have been transferred from the ELN Trust to the LSN Trust.
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With respect to the sign that we probably heard 10
times about today, at least the sign that the ELN Trust had
up, at least it said that there was a vacancy. At least there
was a phone number for somebody to call if they wanted to rent
one of the units. The sign that's up now, there's nothing.
There's no contact information. If somebody wanted to get
into Lindell based on the pictures that were shown, I don't
know how they would get in contact with Lynita to find out
about that vacancy.

The fact of the matter is while she may have poured
her heart and soul into this property, maybe she -- I don't
know, but it's been a losing proposition from day one and the
ELN Trust is suffering because of bad business decisions that
have been made by the LSN Trust. Those units have been bacant
-— vacant for years and I believe I identified that in my
opposition. And the ELN Trust should not continue to incur
damages because of -- of what's been going on today.

THE COURT: Do you got a position on this?

MS. FORSBERG: Your Honor, one thing to add. To our
knowledge, I know they say that she's still a resident of
Nevada, but she technically lives from our understanding is in
Evanston. She's even on the Omni Award directory in Evanston,
Wyoming, to our knowledge.

So the other problem is he's on property to manage
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this —-- this property all the time. She's nowhere to be
found. So that's kind of hard to manage that on a day-to-day
basis whenever it's early, not here, so —--

MR. LUSZECK: Can I -- can I just add one more
thing, Your Honor? And I don't know -- even if this Court
finds if she can still manage it, I don't understand how this
Court can preclude the ELN Trust which is a 50 percent owner
in Lindell from speaking with any other -- any of the other
tenants or precluding it somehow to exercise any of its rights
as a manager.

Just because -- if this Court finds that the LSN
Trust can continue to manage it, she can't still keep
incurring this debt and making improvements without the
consent of the ELN Trust. There still has to be
communication. But it seems like what she's asking for 1is
just cart blanche authority to do whatever she wants despite
the fact that the Nevada Supreme Court found a year ago that
the ELN Trust still has a community -- or sorry, a 50 percent
interest in the property.

Oh, gosh. And then the whole parking roof debacle.
I mean, that's just one example, Your Honor. I mean, that
happens in December 20th and it's not -- there is -- a tenant
has their truck that's stuck under this carport for a month

and nothing happens. And I know in the reply they say well,
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he wanted it to stay there for insurance purposes

Your Honor, that is so farfetched. You're telling
me a tenant of a property is going to want their truck to
stand under a carport for a month? That's a joke. There is
no evidence of that. Where is the affidavit from the tenant
stating that? That's not what happened. That's not what
occurred. It was a complete liability for Lindell property,
nonetheless, it sat there for 30 days until it was ultimately
removed and the tenant was allowed to get his car ocut of
there. And that carport still isn’'t up even though she's
managing the property.

THE COQURT: Any rebuttal?

MR. KARACSONYI: Okay. And -- and Ms. Nelson would
like to say a few words about his last point. I mean, she's
really -- really upset about that.

THE COURT: Sure.

MR. KARACSONYI: But the rent roles -- first of all,
two of those people stopped paying rent and were run off by
Eric immediately after the transfer or weren't paying rent at
the time. The church group stopped paying rent two months
after the transfer. So you can have a lease for all the money
you want, but if the people aren't paying rent and they're not
staying at the building, you're not going to be profitable.

Now as far as the repairs and maintenance that they
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requested in the past, as you recall, a lot of those repairs
and maintenance were for things that the Court really couldn't
justify. He wasn't changing a roof. He wasn't painting the
building. It was Lance Lou (ph) and other people who were
just getting these -- these monies for repair and management
but the Court couldn't really determine at that point what was
being repaired or managed by these people. You don't need to
have a license as a private owner to rent your own property.
You don't have to have a property management license. She's
an owner of this property.

I didn't say -- he says that we acknowledge that she
owes money. I didn't say she owes money. What I did
acknowledge, and -- and reminded this Court of, is that the
fact that -- that you've already said that if there are monies
owed between the parties that you are going to reserve that
for a later date. You haven't made that determination whether
he owes money, she owes money, and you decided, I believe
rightfully, that it should wait until we find out what the
tracing produces because 1f the tracing states that property
doesn't -- it needs to be transferred back to Ms. Nelson or
vice versa, it's going to affect how you look at those monies
that were collected during the pendency of the appeal, if she
still has a right to those properties.

So you haven't made a determination that anybody
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owes money. I haven't conceded that we owe any money. All I
was simply saying is you took the issue of past monies owed
between the parties. You tock that and reserve that to be
done at the very end of this case. And so to the extent that
you asked about him paying the back rent, I -- I just reminded
the Court that that was something that was reserved for a
better -- for -- for a future date.

So the receivership we asked -- or they asked for,
if you're not inclined to allow Ms. Nelson to run the
property, certainly allowing Mr. Nelson to run the property
isn't viable and we would ask then that you go with the
receivership.

Now she is a resident of Nevada. She's never given
up her residency. She is here managing the property.

And this -- this parking structure issue is so
upsetting, because Ms. Nelson was on top of this issue from
the very start even during the time of her mother's passing
which was very difficult. So the -- the tenant asked to leave
the -- the vehicle there until he can determine how to proceed
with the insurance. And in the meantime, she had bids
performed to replace the structure with the existing
materials.

But here's what happened. We -- she gets these bids

and he has all the stuff -- all =- all the material hauled
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away. And so we sent them a letter as they know. And it --
we sent them a letter saying we believe you had all the -- all
the -- the material hauled away and you're causing -- costing
her more money because she was going to use the existing
material and already had the bids done. She's been on top of
these issues for day -- from day one.

The pictures don't lie. The condition of this
property is a hundred times better today than it was back
then. And with that, I think she would like to say a few
words about that issue because -- because it's really
upsetting to her to hear -- to hear such lies spewed in court.

MS. NELSON: Thank you, Your Honor. I stand here on
the merit of my honesty that I've had ever since I walked into
this court and that I've sworn to. And for the representation
of Coun -- of opposing Counsel to suggest that from their
client who has --

MR. KARACSONYI: You can just --

MS. NELSCN: -- determined --
MR. KARACSONYI: -- stick to the --
MS. NELSON: -- otherwise. I -- I appreciate the

opportunity to talk about this proposed issue with the cover.
Okay.
With regards to -- I -- I -- I'm not sure where the

information is coming from. It's -- it's not from the tenant.
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It's —- it's not accurate. It is a lie. 1It's not honest. I
was in contact with the tenant and told him that I could have
lifted it off myself. He wanted to pursue some situations
with insurance and almost refused my -- my multiple time after
time suggestions just to move the truck and have the insurance
cover for it afterwards. That's not what he wanted to do. It
could have been removed. I could lift the cover and pull the
truck out. I could do it. I had a maintenance employee lift
it with me, however, and there wasn't a problem.

The tenant also called one of the persons that I had
obtained a bid from, because he wanted the insurance to
oversee all of this. He didn't want to do it himself. Like I
said, I don't know why. That -- that was his decision. It
wasn't my responsibility. He originally wanted it to be my
responsibility. I told him it was not. I wasn't in charge of
the accident. It wasn't my responsibility. It was between
him and his insurance company and had nothing to do with mine
which is I think why he delayed it. He was trying to convince
people that it was my responsibility

He ended up -- I have emails, I have texts, going
out, lifting the cover himself, and pulling the truck out.
It's between -- it was his decision. It had nothing to do
with mine. And I will address the timing as well.

My mom asked me to stay with her and not to leave
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her side, because there were family members who were visiting
her every day asking her to transfer what little she had,
which was a house and two cars, over to them. When I began
staying with her, they ceased to come. But a new one came.
They were not invited to stay with her the last few days of
her life because they were her family. They were her flesh
and blood. And she because of the deceit was not allowed to
be with her own mother when she passed.

And the suggestions and the lies that are coming
about weeds from a person who would go and steal from a person
on their death bed cannot be considered --

MR, LUSZECK: Your Honor, I --

MS. NELSON: -- or acknowledged --

MR. LUSZECK: -- object to the extent she's talking
about Eric Nelson.

MS. NELSON: And anyway -—-

MR. LUSZECK: This is ridiculous.

MR. NELSON: No, she's not talking about me.

THE COURT: Yeah, I'm not sure it's --

MS. FORSBERG: She's talking about someone else.

THE COURT: And I didn't take it --

MS. FORSBERG: Her family --

THE COURT: —-- that it still bothered her --
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MR.

MS.

what she's --

I did not

MS.
MR.
MS.
P
MR.
THE
MR.
THE

MR.

THE

LUSZECK: And she's not talking about her --

FORSBERG: It's someone in her family T think

NELSON: ©No, I am talking about you.
LUSZECK: Me?

NELSON: Yes.

LUSZECK: Come on, Your Honor.

COURT: Yeah. Yeah.

LUSZECK: This has got to stop. This is --
COURT: Yeah, we don't --

LUSZECK: =-- ridiculous.

COURT: Yeah, I didn't think -- I didn't talk --

take it as being --

MS.

THE

MS.

NELSON: I'm talking about --
COURT: =-- Eric at this time.

NELSON: -- Mr. Nelson and my sister who were in

cahoots together --

was

MR.

MS.

MR.

MS.

MR.

MS.

LUSZECK: Your Honor, I object --
NELSON: —-- during this.
LUSZECK: -- to this.

NELSON: And they bring up the point that there

KARACSONYI: Okay.

NELSON: -- there was --
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MR. LUSZECK: Your Honor --
MS. NELSON: -- some weeds that weren't pulled.
THE COURT: Okay. Well, we'll strike that --

anything from the record as far as anything dealing with the

mother and stuff on that. I was more concerned about the
property management. Those issues are -- and obviously what
happens -- you know, the reason I had transferred the

management to Ms. Lynita back in 2014, when it was on that,
because there was -- these people can't communicate. That was
the problem. They couldn't deal with the altercation with the
gate and push in and Lynita's heel getting caught on that and
we were having almost altercations over a gate and access to
the property and changing locks.

That's why we going to have you guys communicate.
So I know you indicate they need to be able to communicate as
co-owners and do it. And I wish they could, but we couldn't
do that. And we almost got to a point where we had TPOs
being filed and things like that, so we could not co-manage.
And my other option would be to have a separate manager come
and manage the property. That costs both parties money out
that, because I think from when we had the testimony years ago
about a 10 percent management fee was somewhere in the
ballpark when we had it. We didn't really get a lot of

expert. I mean, that's the problem, but my other option is to
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get a separate person to come in and manage. Again, that
costs -- that takes money out of both pockets. But if they
have both owners communicate, I wish they could, but that's
the problem on that.

But I think you're right for me to order and they
cannot communicate with tenants. It's tough as ownership
rights and that from the trust on that, but the fact is to try
to have them communicate and work together, you know, probably
is not going to happen. It's still very emotionally charged.
It's been going on for -- I think they separated in 2008,
filed in 2009, if I remember.

I mean, so I was hoping the case would ultimately
settle after the Supreme Court decision to try to get there
because I can only imagine the -- the pain and the stress and
let alone business, but I think Ms. Lynita has always felt
that when she came in on it, they talked to her kinda she was
like a not very bright stay-at-home kind of mom raising kids
on that and she felt that she can run business on that and she
can always get into -- should they put the money in whose
better business.

You know, the Court follows the business judgment
rule. You assume people -- there's a judgment and not for me
to secondguess people's judgment. They come in and make

investments, do things like that, and people make business
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enough for me to determine unless I see someone who's doing
things fraudulently or not taking care of property, but that's
the problem we're at this point, that no one trusts each other
still, that they're afraid you're going to get rid of all the
property just to try to make sure that no matter what happens
that she won't get anything.

Your issue is you don't think that they're trying to
tie you guys up, so you can't do business, but you guys need
to get this resolved. But it's not going to be resclved. You
guys are going to be litigating this probably -- I'm retiring
in two-and-a-half years and I expect this will be litigated
after my retirement and so be it. But I will take all the --
any issues that I missed that you want to address? Because
I ——

MR. LUSZECK: Well, I just had two quick things.
Counsel said that some of the tenants that were in the
property when the LSN Trust took over the property weren't
paying rent or only differ two months. That's false. If you
look at Exhibit 4, gosh, the accounting that they provided for
July, August, September of 2014 shows that every single tenant
in there paid rent. The total of $7,800 was collected from
each month.

So I'm just telling you what they put in the

accounting that they sent over to me that they ordered to by
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the Court back in 2014. I believe it's Exhibit 4. Exhibit 4

to my opposition.

And then with respect to the -- the carport, Your
Honor, it Jjust boils down to it's a liability issue. If it
was this light =-- you know, if -- if it was as light as -- as

Ms. Nelson says that it was and she could have lifted it up,
we're talking about December. What -- what would have stopped
the wind from coming and blcowing that across the street or
hitting a house or hitting a commercial property or hitting
somebody? It's a liability issue. It needed to be submitted
to the insurance company for them to deal with it. It's a
pretty straightforward type thing when it comes to commercial
liability and commercial insurance policies. So that's what
should have been done, but it wasn't.

MR. KARACSONYI: And it's just not true Your Honor
about the rents. They -- they weren't paying full rents,

SO —--—

MR. LUSZECK: Well, that's -- we got it from his
office So it's Exhibit 4.

THE COURT: Any other things? I felt that -- as I
said, I'll give you guys written orders on, everything we need
written orders on, everything to get this moving forward. I
think Mr. Bertsch -- I think you need an issue as -- as far as

the tracing? I mean, and so you can get started. I think
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that was the tie up on that. The parties cannot agree on a
tracing date. 1Is that where we're still at?

MR. BERTSCH: You know, as I listen to this, in some
cases it sounds like we're chasing the hamster and letting the
elephants running over us.

THE COURT: Yeah, I --

MR. BERTSCH: And I've always tell my clients one of
the best things to do if you're going any place, you get in
the car and you go. What's the biggest window in that car?
It's the windshield. That's where you're going. If you drive
down the road looking in the rearview mirror, you're going to
have an accident. And it appears by some of this that's about
where we're headed

Now as far as the tracing is concerned, I was
looking for a starting point. And I looked at the schedules
that were prepared on May 3lst, 2001. And ask each side to
verify if that is the starting point.

So as I understand the trust, it's like two
different companies. They have no relationship other than
they do business with each other like a vendor. I find in
looking at those, there was -- it was titles for everything
that was on there with a few exceptions which have to be
answered. But after that, they're claiming what went in

there, there's no community assets because now it's private
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and it belongs to them individually.

What I find in locking at some of the information is
after that things get commingled. And they don't remain
separate. The titles go back and forth. And what I'm told is
if we change one or if the other person got this, they can do
whatever they want. So they're gifts.

And to my way of thinking, if there is a transfer,
or money transferred, even though it's commingled, there's got
to be due to and due from. And the transfers have to be at an
arms length transaction and they were not arms length
transactions here.

So the differences are passing through the
commingling of funds. Should be an arms length transaction.
If it isn't arms length and it goes to this considering a
gift, to me, it may not be community property going in, but it
gives me some sense. It became community property afterwards.
So we need a definition what is the community prcperty.

The Lindell, I think there's no question the
receiver has to operate that property. In my doing this for
over 50 years, that's the solution. And the receiver then can
report and operate the property. That's my look. So it
becomes hard to trace if everybody has a different opinion.

If I trace it and it goes from one commingled to another, does

that mean it's a gift and I forget about it? If that's the
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case, where everything was signed up on May 31st, and it can
be at a price that's not at fair value, you don't setup a due
to and due from on everything. Then it's over. I have no
tracing to do.

The other thing, we talked about the appraisal. And
as I received the -- getting an appraisal on the property, one
side said they didn't want to use the same person. I looked
at finding an appraiser for the property on the cabin. And
looking at their requirements and doing background checks, and
I didn't look at the prior appraisal, I came up with who I'd
like to talk to. I pull the appraisal it was the same person.
So I think they're gqualified. They both said it's okay to use
the same one. I think it's cheaper. I think they're
qualified. And I will contact them for doing an appraisal.

But I would like to have direction from the Court of
how we treat this commingling, and if there are gifts, and
should we pursue it on that basis.

MR. KARACSONYI: I'm going to -- oh.

MR. LUSZECK: Oh, sure.

THE COURT: Do you want to be heard on that? And
then we'll —-- thank you, Mr. Bertsch

MR. LUSZECK: Yeah, I -- I thought this Court's
order was clear. He's supposed to conduct a tracing as to

what happened between the two entities, if anything. He's not
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supposed to make opinions as to commingling or whether it's
community property or whether it's fair market value or
anything else. We have two separate entities. We've never
disputed that there was business transactions between the two.

In the Supreme Court order on Page 17, this said the
Court must trace trust assets to determine whether any
community property exists within the trust. While I concede a
tracing has to be done, it's not Mr. Bertsch's within his I
think appointment of a special master to make a determination
of whether or not anything was commingled or whether or not
anything constitutes community property. I think that's a
determination to be made by this Court.

So my understanding from day one is he's supposed to
look at the two entities, identify any transactions between
the two, and then come back to the Court and report that's
what my finding is, Your Honor, you know. Entity A sold, you
know, (indiscernible) to entity B, period. And then this
Court makes a determination as to whether or not there's
community property interest in there. If there's any claims
of malfeasance or anything else with respect to a transaction,
that's an A case, Your Honor. They've already filed a civil
case for that. And that's where that deal's -- that's a
situation where that's dealt with.

But I don't think it's appropriate for the spec&al
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master who is appointed for a -- a fairly limited purpose to
make determinations with respect to questions of fact and law
which I think are ultimately for this Court to decide. And
then —--

MR. BERTSCH: Your Honor, if I recall, the order to
me was to find if community property got involved with those
transactions So we need a starting point. They were all in
the trust. There was no community property at that time
because the titles were in the appropriate names.

If that's considered gifts, after that if it goes
back and forth, there's nothing for me to do other than just
say it starts where it is. But I'm telling you, as I started
through it, some of these other questions came tec mind, and I
need instructions from the Court, do I just drop it or do I
finish going through the transactions from the first up to
current?

MS FORSRBERG: Your Honor, if I can -- one -- one
thing and I think perhaps would help Mr. Bertsch is that the
character of property remains as it is. If it's separate
property and you're transfer between, it's still separate
property. 1t doesn't lose its characteristic. I think that's
the confusion he's having. He's basically saying nothing else
happened and they were separate to begin with. And I don't

see -- I believe that's what he's saying. So I think he's not
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understanding that character of property remains as is, the
existing property. If it's separate property, rents, issues,
and profits, which means selling or purchasing of other things
which is profits, rents, issues, and profits remain as they
are. And yet, they have to determine if they brought
something else in to make them community. I think that's what
he's confused about.

MR. KARACSONYI: I think what -- what's causing the
confusion is that it sounds to me like he's being told -- and
I assume this is coming from Mr. Nelson, that these transfers
are gifts. He -- he's not supposed to presume anything. I
think what you would like —- and I think what the Supreme
Court's charge is and what you would like him to do is find
out -- to report on each and every one of those transactions.
Okay. As he said, property was transferred, was it arms
length Was there money back. If not, what should have been
paid and what wasn't paid. And to do that with each and every
transaction going forward and to find out where the property
that existed in 2013 came from and whether you can trace it
all the way back or whether it's so commingled ycu can't even
trace it back.

And so with each -- with each transaction, I think
it -- it -- it's his charge to just chart each and every

transaction between these entities, whether money was paid for
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it, you know, how the transfer occurred, each and every
property that was acquired, where did the money come from to
acquire that. Was -- did it come from the original money or
did it come from money that was transferred between the two or
did it come from money that it's impossible to say where it
came from in which case that it's presumed to be community
property.

And then at the end of the day Your Honor needs to
make the decision once you have all this information, and they
wrote this in their initial brief, they argued some of these
points in their initial brief on remand, the -- the transfers
were gifts and this and that, so you should find that they're
separate property or whatever.

But it's ultimately your decision to determine under
community property law whether there was a transmutation And
they talked a lot about transmutation. Whether her separate

property was transmuted to his separate property. Whether her

tran —-- separate property was transmuted to community property
or whether his community property —-- or separate property was
transmuted.

And so once you have all those transactions, then
you can make the determination. And you can look at the law.
Is this a c¢lear and convincing evidence of a transmutation?

This was Lynita's separate property. It went to Eric. Did
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she intend to transmute that property and -- or did she intend
to gift it to him?

And so those are all the things that you are
ultimately -- I agree with Counsel. You are ultimately going
to make those decisions as to whether the character of
property change. But I think for Mr. Bertsch's purposes, I
think the charges map each and every transaction from 2001 you
-- which you indicated was the date that you thought the
Supreme Court set to present -- to 2013 -- or 2013 and let me
know what happened between these trusts and where the property
that existed in 2013 if you can tell me definitively. where
that property came from. If you can tell me that you can
trace that back to 2001.

MR. LUSZECK: Yeah, I don't -- I don't disagree with
that. But that's what the charge is and that's the tracing
that's supposed to happen is this -- yeah, what do we have in
2001 and where was it going forward.

But I think the big misconception here is the fact
that the only way the community property would even arise in
this situation is if Eric or Lynita have assets titled outside
of the trust that they transferred into the trust. And that
would make it community property. So if Eric had assets
income that were outside of the ELN Trust that he funded after

2001 into the ELN Trust, then we may have a community property
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issue. But the fact that the ELN Trust had an -- an asset in
2001, sold it, purchased another asset, things like that
nature, that doesn't transmutate it into community property.
The separate property retains its character throughout,
through present.

So I think that distinction needs to be made, that
just because there may have been transfers between the trust
or business transactions, that doesn't mean it's transmutated
into community property. It keeps and it retains its same
nature.

THE COURT: I think the issue with Mr. Bertsch is to
-- except -- 1is to trace -- is to tell (indiscernible) -- 1is
to trace it so the Court can make a determination. Many
positions will be it's a gift. The Supreme Court talked
about, you know, gifts, things like that. Well, that's the
whole thing to determine about. Was it -- and part of to
determine the gift is you look to see, you know, was there
arms length transaction, was there value. If I find
everything going from one to the cther, there's millions of
dollars of gifts to that side and this group's getting
nothing, I don't know if it's really a gift or not. I mean,
that's the whole issue it comes on that.

And so I think (indiscernible) as far as whether

it's commingling, I -- I think those issues are due -- due to,
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due from. And to say where it went, how it got there, and
where it went afterwards so we can determine those issues on
that, was there a value paid, was there not value paid. Is it
then going to be -- did he send her a gift or not a gift. I
think that's the issue.

So I think the other fact is on that if we start
from the premise that everything was a gift, I thin Mr.
Bertsch says that there's nothing to trace. And I'm not
taking a presumption everything was a gift. I think the issue
is to see where it came from, May 31st, 2001 through the
divorce decree or that property was, who owned it, where it
went.

And again, I agree with you. If it was separate
property, it doesn't automatically lose that, but the issue --
I don't know where everything came. That's the issue on this
guestion is that there's all these transactions, did this come
from that, did this come from here, and that's what the
Supreme Court was saying with the tracing. We don't know
where everything came from, let alone with titles on that.

But I know Mr. Karacsonyi disagrees, and I respect that about

the Supreme Court, but they -- to me with their language, we
hold. We find. I felt -- and that's why I went from the May
31st, 2001 based upon a -- now maybe they used poor language,

but that's something you clarify with them. But that's why I
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went from the May 31st, 2001, here's where it started, where
did it go through, June 2013. That's all I'm trying to trace
it through that.

And I think Mr. Bertsch needs in all those issues,
like was there value paid for it, was it this or that, so he
can let me know on those issues and the Court would determine
whether it's separate property or was it community property or
where it went through, but there was the issues. I don't know
where all the BanOne stuff came from, how it got there, to be
honest

I know we had different pieces of property. It's
been so long ago, I forgot, but there's an awful lot of
transactions from the 2001 when they created the trust what
was in there and what came up to 2013, was there any property
that a party put in that was separate property that of course
they could not give their community property and trust if
there was community property used on that. Eric could give
his half, but not Ms. Lynita's half.

So that's the issue is what it looks like with the
properties. So I'm not sure what the exact issue is from --
from the trust, but I'll hear it from --

MR. LUSZECK: Well, the issue is is -- yeah, he's
supposed to conduct a tracing, but he's not supposed tc state,

you know, this is community property, this is -- I believe
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this wasn't for fair market value in our link's transaction.
That's not the scope of his retention. He's suppcsed to
trace. He's supposed to lcocok at the transactions, here they
are, Your Honor, here's my spreadsheet, here's my deccument,
here's what it is, but it shouldn't contain language such as
community property, commingling, you know, it shouldn't have
any of that because that's not what a special master is
supposed to do.

THE COURT: I agree.

MR. LUSZECK: That's one. And two, Wyoming Downs
shouldn't be included in this tracing either based upon the
fact that the 9/22/2014 was not overturned by the Nevada
Supreme Court. So the issue is completely outside of the
scope of his retention because it has nothing to do with
anything.

MS. FORSBERG: Your Honor, just to -- to finish the
clarification on that, is -- is -- it's —-- to determine
whether it was community property instead of if it's trust
property and they did business between each other, that's not
community property. That's two trusts that are separate
entities that don't have a community interest. They're now
separate property that are going back and forth. And whether
that's fair or not is not before the Nevada Supreme Court the

Supreme Court said. It said find out if there's any community
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property that's been put in there and gone back and forth.
That's the difference. I think that's one thing that Eric --
we have been discussing that that's what the task is.

And that's what the tracing should show you, whether
they brought something in from the outside that they -- they
had earned on a community property setting and put it in.
It's not whether they tran -- transferred separate property
and transferred -- it still remains separate property. I
think that's the confusion too.

MR. LUSZECK: But that's true, because any -- any
claims that, you know, a transaction --

MS. FORSBERG: It's unfair or --

MR. LUSZECK: -- was not fair or anything else,
that's subject to the A case.

MS. FORSBERG: That's not --

MR. LUSZECK: That's not --

MS. FORSBERG: ~-- this.

MR. LUSZECK: -- even -- this Court is to determine
whether or not there's any --

MS. FORSBERG: Community --

MR. LUSZECK: =-- community --

MS. FORSBERG: -- property, period.

MR. LUSZECK: -- property within either one of the
trusts. It's not to determine whether or not a transaction
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was fair or anything else. It's whether there was community
property. Once again, that's your determination, not Mr
Bertsch's

MR. KARACSONYI: So if I may just respond to them.
I don't disagree on the part -- part that he's not going to
make decision as he's not the judge and he's not going tc make
the decision on the character of property. I don't think we
have any disagreement there or the character -- how —-- how

transactions changes the character of property.

Certainly though if -- if a transaction was done
where property -- her separate property was transferred to his
trust without consideration, he would say -- he would note

that this was a transfer for zero dollars and the property
sold for X dollars and she didn't get that. So whether you
want to say whether he determines if it's arms length or not,
he can say -- he can trace the transactions, was it zero, was
it $5, was it $10.

And it is this Court's charge to find out what the
character of property is and the transmutation issues. That's
part of community property law and whether there were
transmutations of property. And we -- we must ncot forget that
anything earned or required during marriage is community
property.

And everything they're doing in their trust, if he's
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earning monies during marriage, those are community efforts
that need to be compensated. And so that -- if that's
occurring in the trust and there's properties being acquired,
even if you acquire them in trust, I can't go defeat my wife's
community property interest by setting up a trust and buying a
property in the name of that trust. I can't do that.

If you purchase a property during marriage in the
name of a trust, just because you title it in a trust doesn't
make it separate property. You hawve to show that it was
derived from actual separate property. And that's exactly
what his charge is, to go back and look. If it's the rents
issues and profits, if you own the Palmyra residence, I'll
just use my client as an example, and you sold it for 700,000
and you bought another house for 700,000, that's your separate
property. I don't disagree if the transaction is the same on
that side, although I disagree with the date of tracing, but
that's for the Supreme Court to later decide if that was
correct or not.

But this -- this idea that just because you did
things in the name of the trust, that doesn't defeat your
spouse's community property interest. So we just need to see
all the transactions all the way through. If Wyoming Downs
gets covered there at the very end, we need to see every

dollar from point A to point B and then make a determination
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as to how that affected the character of property.

MS. FORSBERG: Your Honor, one thing that Mr. --

MR. KARACSONYI: I would just --

MS. FORSBERG: ~-- Karacsonyi --

MR. KARACSONYI: T would just ask that --

MS. FORSBERG: ©Oh, sorry.

MR. KARACSONYI: -- we have, like, replies to -~
they’ve talked last every time. I mean, I've noticed that
even when it's my motion, so I -- I don't do that generally
with them.

THE COURT: 1I'll give you a last -- we got so many
motions going back and forth and countermotions.

MS. FORSBERG: I'm just --

THE COURT: I'm not sure who's filed --

MS. FORSBERG: Watching them is misstated. There is
a separate —-- separate property agreement way, way back before
any trust that --

THE COURT: Between 93

MS. FORSBERG: -—- separates the in come. 93. That
salid his income is now his separate property and the Supreme
Court held that. I think that was the only thing I was saying
is that he forgot that portion, that -- that -- you -- you
can't say now well, if he earned it in here that now it's

community, because it's not according to the separate property
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agreement.

THE COURT: ©Now the -- the issue for Mr. Bertsch on
that is -- to me is to see what transactions happened and was
there value paid, not value paid, not whether it was gifts or
commingled or transmuted where they to say what a property is
That's been the big question of this case from day one, what's
the property, where it came from. There's so many
transactions and this accounts. That's what we're trying to
do is see where it came from and how it got there and from the
2001 to 2013. So as far as --

MR. KARACSONYI: And if this --

THE COURT: -- those issues about arms length
transactions, it's like that, I think the issue is -- this was
transferred from here to there, they paid a hundred bucks or
paid no money --

MR. KARACSONYI: And —-—

THE COURT: -- and it --

MR. KARACSONYI: And when prop --

THE COURT: -- that becomes gifts or if it's
community or separate. That's right.

MR. BERTSCH: Your Honor, what I'm talking about is
on Page 5 and on the top of Page 6, because it's talking about
at this particular point --

MS., FORSBERG: Of the Supreme Court?
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MR. BERTSCH: -- this 1is from --

MR. LUSZECK: Yeah,

MR. BERTSCH: -- the Supreme Court.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. BERTSCH: 1It's talking about where Lana Martin,
a Nevada resident, as initial distribution trustee was for
both parties. And then on the top of Page 8, it said many
transfers of property occurred between the trusts between
2001, 2009, most of which were gifts from one trust to
another. They're not designated that, but if they're saying
that any -- anything was transferred after that was a gift,
then the tracing of it is moot.

THE COURT: 1Is ~-- is moot, yeah.

MR. LUSZECK: Because there was no community

MR. KARACSONYI: I -- I don't have the full context
of what he's reading right there, but I think he needs to
trace again all the transactions, nobody disagrees, and let
you make the ultimate decision of what the laws and the fact
-- laws are and the facts.

As far as -- just one thing that I hope isn't
missed, that he also has to when there's an acquisition,
because we keep talking about these transfers back and forth,
when there's an acquisition, he does need to say if it's

acquired during marriage a piece of property de you know the
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source of those monies. Can you determine where that money
came from. Is it monies that could have come from her trust
or both their trusts or -- or where. Can you trace it back to
-- to which -- where did it come from, that money, so that you
can determine whether you can trace that property back to
separate property or whether you can't tell where that money
came from, in which case the presumption arises that it's
community property.

THE COURT: Well, the issue on that, I think the
Supreme Court on that they did use the word gifts. But I
think if they had meant gifts all the way 2009 and there are
no sense to trace and they did mention about the need to trace
is that's the issue is try to see where the property went from
2001 to 2013 time of divorce to see what was in there to see
if there's any community property claims. There may have been
gifts back and forth to trusts. You can give gifts between
trusts on that, but I think the issue from this Court is to
see where it came from, what it was, where it came from.
That's what the whole purpose of tracing was then determined,
was there any community interest or not.

I think the Supreme Court -- I said with their
language I wasn't sure when it went back to 1993, They made
it real clear that we find -- we hold that they were funded

with separate property agreements. That's why I started with
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the 2001 date because I thought the Supreme Court used the
word we find, we hold. That's not dicta, that's findings.
That's why again I did the tracing from the 2001 to the
divorce decree to sit there and see where it came from, where
it went, that way we can make a determination was it separate
property, maintain separate property, fine.

Mr. Bertsch, anything else on that? I mean --

MR. BERTSCH: And then I take it that I will start
with the deeds and things that are present at March 31lst,
2001. I will then take it to disposition through today or
2009, whatever you ask me to do, which would ke if there's a
sale, where did the funds go, how they show on a tax return.
Then i1f there's other purchases in the -- after that, then
where did the funds come from to have the purchase. And if
it's from one trust to the other, they used funds and there's
got to be a due to or due from.

THE CQOURT: Yeah.

MR. KARACSONYI: And there's one other issue. When
money comes --

MS. NELSON: Wait. Wait. We can cut Larry --

MR. LUSZECK: Oh, I -- I don't -- I don't doubt
that. Yeah.

MR. KARACSONYI: Just to -- for -- as accounting

purposes, I thin. But when there's money coming in to the
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trust too, he's -- one other thing. Not just deeds, but if
money comes into the trust, you have to determine where did
that money come from. If -- if a trust -- if you take 200,000
in your savings and put it in a trust, you don't defeat the
character of property and then buy property with it. So any

money coming in too, you'll have to say where did that money

come from, was it earnings, was it —-- where did it -- do we
know where it came from? If -- if we don't know, then it's
community property and we -- the presumption arises.

THE COURT: I'm inclined not to have the Wyoming
Downs thrown in there, I remember when I did the divorce
decree and we held off on Wyoming Downs separately, but I'll
look at that, but we held separate. I think I made a separate
ruling on the Wyoming Downs. I heard separate testimony on
that. I believe it was not a final decree because I had held
off on Wyoming Downs because I needed to get an evidentiary
hearing, but I'11 look at that, but I will not be inclined --
I think I made findings that the Wyoming Downs was separate at
that time even though they argued that it was still acquired
during marriage, should or shouldn't have been included on
that, but my inclination is not to include the Wyoming Doi --
Wyoming Downs in your tracing at this point. But I'll look at
all that whether -- a detailed written order.

But to get this going, I would think we start with
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the -- there was the May 31st, was it the date? May 30th,

2001 date to --

MR. BERTSCH: Your Honor —-—

THE CQOURT: -- tracing --

MR. BERTSCH: -- if I take it from the trust because
you have to start with an inventory and see what happens, if I
happen to hit Wyoming Downs then I'm going to --

MR, KARACSONYI: Yeah.

MR. BERTSCH: ~-- have --

THE COURT: Sure.

MR. BERTSCH: =-- to talk about it.

MR. KARACSONYI: That's -- you're not golng to be

able to do that.

that, but that was my issue.

THE

COURT: Absolutely. I mean, if it's there on

purchased initially.

it —-

MR.

THE

MR.

THE

MR.

THE

MR.

KARACSONYI: It was --
COURT: I don't --

KARACSONYI: ~-- right before the divorce.

I don't remember when that was

COURT: How they bought it and sold it and then

LUSZECK: It was --
COURT: —-- reacquired it --

LUSZECK: ~-- during the pendency --
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THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. LUSZECK: -- of the divorce.
THE COURT: Exactly.

MS. FORSBERG: Very end of it.

MR. LUSZECK: It was 2012, 2000 --

MR. KARACSONYI: Yeah, right -- right prior to the
divorce.

MS. FORSBERG: What we --

THE COURT: But yeah --

MS. FORSBERG: -- we --—

THE COURT: ~-- but if you don't come up with that --

MS. FORSBERG: We owned it before then.

THE COURT: -- of course, that comes in network.

MR. LUSZECK: Okay.

THE COURT: All right. That gives vyou enough to get
started on that. I'm going to get a written decisicn on all

these issues.

MR. BERTSCH: And I will take May 31st. I will not
go prior to that. May 31st, the balance sheets, 1s the
starting point and we'll go forward from that. Whatever is on
those balance sheets, and I will consider, is their trust
property.

THE COURT: Fair enough. I think that --

MR. LUSZECK: Yeah, and I think he's already
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prepared a table that identifies all of the assets on each of

the trusts on

THE

MR.

THE

MR.

THE

that I know

of the matter.

MR.

that day. My -- that's my recollection --

COURT: Yeah, and when -—-

LUSZECK: -- and I guess he can go --
COQURT: -- we had so many --
LUSZECK: -- back and see, yeah.

COURT: And they had a lot of accountings on
that Mr. Bertsch had several during the pendency
So all right.

BERTSCH: What he says is correct, but I needed

verification from each side, do you agree that it would be the

starting point. That's what I'm asking. That's what I asked

for.
MR.
THE
MS.
THE
MR.
So —--
THE
What --

KARACSONYI: That's what the Court ordered.
COURT: The starting point would be -~
FORSBERG: It's what the Court ordered.
COURT: =-- May 31st, 2001.

BERTSCH: And there was one exception on that.

COURT: Which -- which is the exception?

(COUNSEL CONFER BRIEFLY)

MR.

THE

KARACSONYI: All right. Are we --

COURT: I think we're --
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MR. KARACSONYI: Thank you, Your Honor.

MR. LUSZECK: And one I guess further clarification
point is I don't know that we asked for a receiver over
Lindell. I think we just said a third party --

THE COURT: You said --

MR. LUSZECK: -—- manager.

THE COURT: -- a disinterested manager.

MR, LUSZECK: Yeah.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. KARACSONYI: I -- I was using receiver
interchangeably with that.

THE COURT: I would be inclined to do that just
because it's unfortunate on that, but I think under the
circumstance there's no way we can -- that either party --

(COUNSEL CONFER BRIEFLY)

MR. BERTSCH: If you want to appoint that third
party over --

THE COURT: Do you --

MR. BERTSCH: ~-- they'll never get agreement.

THE COURT: Yeah, do you —- do you have -- do you
feel comfortable with making a recommendation to the Court as
a disinterested manager? I mean, you have more experience in
that or you -- I can check (indiscernible) disinterested

manager for the --

D-09-411537-D NELSON 07/23/2018 TRANSCRIPT (SEALED)
VERBATIM REPORTING & TRANSCRIPTION, LLC (520) 303-7356

68

PSAPP0500



Docket 77254 Documg§%£g§8795



PSAPPO0376



PSAPPO0377



PSAPPO0378



PSAPPO0379



PSAPP0380



PSAPPO0381



PSAPP0382



PSAPPO0383



PSAPP0384



PSAPPO0385



PSAPPO0386



PSAPP0387



PSAPPO0388



PSAPP0389



PSAPP0390



PSAPPO0391



PSAPP0392



PSAPP0393



PSAPP0394



PSAPP0395



PSAPP0396



PSAPP0397



PSAPP0398



PSAPP0399



PSAPP0400



PSAPP0401



PSAPP0402



PSAPP0403



PSAPP0404



PSAPP0405



PSAPP0406



PSAPP0407



PSAPP0408



Electronically Filed
6/22/2018 4:03 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT

PSAPP0409

Case Number: D-09-411537-D



PSAPP0410



PSAPPO0411



Electronically Filed
7/12/2018 8:13 PM
Steven D. Grierson
CLERK OF THE COURT

07/23/2018

PSAPP0412

Case Number: D-09-411537-D



PSAPP0413



PSAPPO0414



PSAPPO0415



PSAPPO0416



PSAPPO0417



PSAPP0418



PSAPP0419



PSAPP0420



PSAPP0421



PSAPP0422



PSAPP0423



PSAPP0424



PSAPP0425



PSAPP0426



PSAPP0427



PSAPP0428



PSAPP0429



PSAPP0430



PSAPPO0431



PSAPP0432



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

FILED
AUG 1 4 2018

TRANS % o
ct Hkéég‘én'ﬁf

EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT
FAMILY DIVISION
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
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)
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The Trustee:
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(702) 853-5483
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA MONDAY, JULY 23, 2018
PROCEEDINGS

(THE PROCEEDINGS BEGAN AT 09:05:33)

THE COURT: -- computer up so I can pull up any
documents I need. This is the time set in the -- whoops -- in
the matter -- in the Nelson matter, case number D-09-411537.
We'll get everyone's appearance for the record. We'll --
we'll start with —--

MR. KARACSONYI: Josef Karacsonyi on behalf of
Lynita Nelson who is present. 10634 is my bar number.

THE COURT: Mr. Bertsch?

MR. BERTSCH: Larry Bertsch. I've been appointed to
do some extra research working on the project.

THE COURT: Thank you.

MR. LUSZECK: Jeff Luszeck, bar number 9619, on
behalf of Matt Klabacka, distribution Trustee of the trust.

THE COQURT: Thank you.

MS. FORSBERG: Good morning, Your Honor. Rhonda
Forsberg, 98557, on behalf of Eric Nelson who is present to my
right

THE COURT: Thank you. Sit down. Good morning.
Good merning Ms. Lynita and Mr. Eric. Good to see both of you

again. I have —-- let me make sure I got everything pending
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before me, so before -- and this is on Ms. Nelson's motion to
consolidate and also her motion for reconsideration. I have
read the Trustee's opposition to the consolidation and their
countermotion for attorney's fees. I also have it on for Ms
Nelson's motion to run the Lindell property and for Mr. Nelson
to pay rent. I've read that along with the Trustee's
opposition to the motions and to terminate the JPI and post a
bond on the property, expunge the lis pendens, and allow ENL
Trust (sic) to run the Lindell property and for attorney's
fees and Ms. Nelson's reply to opposition to the motion to
consolidate and the Trustee's opposition to Lynita running the
property and Eric paying rent and all the other replies on
that.

Is -- is there anything that I missed that we have

on calendar for?

MR. KARACSONYTI: I didn't -- you said the JPI,
the --

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. KARACSONYI: -- reconsideration?

THE COURT: JPI, I said

MR. KARACSONYI: Okay.

MR. LUSZECK: I wasn't aware of the motion to
consolidate --

MR. KARACSONYI: I wasn't =--
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MR. LUSZECK: -- was on.

MR. KARACSONYI: =-- either.

MR. LUSZECK: I --—

THE COURT: Was it?

MS. FORSBERG: Yeah.

MR. LUSZECK: I --

MS. FORSBERG: I don't think --

MR. LUSZECK: I thought based on prior
correspondence with your office you were just going to be
making a ruling --

THE COURT: Yeah.

MR. LUSZECK: =- put that on the bench

THE COURT: That was my thing on that as well, but
that I dig through it just since people were going to be here
if they wanted --

MR. LUSZECK: Okay.

THE COURT: -- anything on that, but I don't really
indicate we do a separate order on that motion.

MR. LUSZECK: Okay.

MR. KARACSONYI: Okay. Yeah, that was my
understanding as well,

MR. LUSZECK: Yeah.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. Let me get logged in

there so I can pull up any documents and get this on a roll
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for me

(COUNSEL CONFER BRIEFLY)

THE COURT: I believe Mr Bertsch you were here to
try to get a date for your tracing? Is that kind of --

MR. BERTSCH: I need --

THE COURT: I know you want to trace --

MR. BERTSCH: -- further instructions from the
Court --

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. BERTSCH: -- as well.

THE COQURT: OQOkay. OQkay. Because some of this is
kind of a motion for reconsideration specifically.

MR. KARACSONYI: Do you want me to start there?

THE CQURT: Yeah, why don't we start there on that,
because as I said, I've already started writing a motion to
consolidate. I may include that in all these orders, all
these orders, so that I have one comprehensive order, but --

MR. KARACSONYI: Okay. All right. On May 22nd,
your decision basically set the groundwork for -- for what our
request. And that is you said both the BanOne LLC and Lindell
properties are subject to a claim of community interests, and
I'm guoting you, as such, both properties are entitled to a
joint preliminary injunction to ensure that the properties

remain intact prior to the completion of tracing and the final
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judgment of this Court.

Eventually, the argument we're making here is you
did include the BanOne and the Lindell properties to protect
those, but there are other properties that are subject to a
claim of community interest that we believe were just simply
overlooked. And -- and the reason is clear. You were at that
time transferring the BanOne and Lindell properties from --
from Lynita and LSN Trust back to Eric and the ELN Trust. And
so that point in time, those were the two properties that were
really at the forefront of everyone's mind.

And as a result, we really didn't consider the other
properties which are subject to a claim of community interest.
Some of those properties that you divided even in the decree
making an equal division were never transferred to her such as
Russell Road, 2. -- 2.265 million worth of property. Bella
Kathryn. All these properties that are in the ELN Trust and
the LSN Trust are subject to a claim of community interest at
this point in time. And until the tracing determines
otherwise, I think we need to protect all those properties to
ensure that she's protected.

EDCR 5.517 states that any property that's subject
to a claim of community interest needs to be protected. And
so we're not so much seeking reconsideration. They —-- they

make a big issue of well, you're seeking reconsideration of
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FRANK P. SULLIVAN
DISTRICT JUDGE

FAMILY DIVISION, DEPT. O
LAS VEGAS NV 89101

appraiser is available. Once received, the Eric L. Nelson Nevada Trust has the
right of first refusal on any offer on the property with the ability to purchase the
Lynita S. Nelson Nevada Trust’s 50% interest.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that in the event that the Eric L. Nelson
Nevada Trust and the Lynita S. Nelson Nevada Trust cannot agree on a valid
offer, Larry Bertsch, CPA, is to retain a realtor to place the property on the open
market for a fair market offer. Once the realtor determines that a fair offer has
been received, the Eric L. Nelson Nevada Trust has the right of first refusal on
any offer on the property with the ability to purchase the Lynita S. Nelson
Nevada Trust’s 50% interest.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that any appraisal and realtor costs
associated with the Brian Head Utah Cabin sale will be paid equally by both Eric
L. Nelson Nevada Trust and the Lynita S. Nelson Nevada Trust.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the $720,000.00 being held in Bank of
Nevada Account 7502338705 be released to an account of the Eric L. Nelson
Nevada Trust’s choosing.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that any Stay of Order is hereby DENIED.

DATED this_/ 4 #Rlay of April, 2018.

’44/«/ L.

Hondrable Frank P. Sullivan
District Court Judge — Dept. O
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FRANK P. SULLIVAN
DISTRICT JUDGE

FAMILY DIVISION, DEPT. O

LAS VEGAS NV 89101

Injunction. The Court, having reviewed all Motions, based thereon and good
cause appearing therefor:

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

A. May 30, 2001 is the Proper Date To Begin the Tracing Because the Nevada
Supreme Court Found and Held That the ELN and LSN Trusts Were
Funded With Separate Property

In its May 25, 2017 Order, the Nevada Supreme Court concluded that this
Court erred by “not tracing the assets contained within the trusts, either through a
reliable expert or other available means.”' The Nevada Supreme Court also held
that both the Eric L. Nelson Nevada Trust (“ELN Trust”) and the Lynita S.
Nelson Nevada Trust (“LSN Trust”) “are valid and the trusts were funded with
separate property stemming from a valid separate property agreement.”

In its April 19, 2018 Order, this Court did not address the tracing
performed in the underlying divorce proceeding. During the divorce proceeding,
this Court did not perform a tracing of assets contained within either the Eric L.
Nelson Nevada Trust (“ELN Trust”) or the Lynita S. Nelson Nevada Trust (“LSN
Trust”). In its May 25, 2017 Order, the Nevada Supreme Court found that “[i]n

2001, Eric and Lynita converted their separate property trusts into Eric’s Trust

and Lynita’s Trust, respectively, and funded the SSST’s with the separate

! Klabacka v. Nelson, 394 P.3d 940, 948 (Nev. 2017).
% Klabacka, 394 at 947.
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property contained within the separate property trusts.”” The Nevada Supreme
Court then held that both the ELN and LSN Trusts were funded with separate
property based on their findings.*

While this Court never performed a tracing of assets in the trusts in the
underlying divorce proceedings, the Nevada Supreme Court held that “the SSSTs
are valid and the trusts were funded with separate property stemming from a
valid separate property agreement.” Therefore, based upon the Nevada Supreme
Court’s finding and holding, this Court interprets the proper date to begin tracing
as May 30, 2001, the date on which both the ELN and LSN Trusts were executed.

B. The $720,000 Released to the ELN Trust Is A Valid Disbursement As the
Funds Were Allocated In Error

In its May 25, 2017 Order, the Nevada Supreme Court found that this
Court erred in Ordering the ELN Trust to pay the personal obligations of Mr.
Nelson with regard to a lump-sum alimony payment.’ In response to the Nevada
Supreme Court’s holding, this Court Ordered the return of the $720,000 which
was paid by the ELN Trust and being held in a blocked account.

The sole purpose of the disbursement of the $720,000 was for the payment
of Mr. Nelson’s personal obligations. Otherwise, the funds would have remained

within the ELN Trust and be afforded all the protections of a Nevada Trust. As

3 Id. at 943.

4 Id, at 947.

S1d.

® Klabacka v. Nelson, 394 P.3d 940, 952 (Nev. 2017).
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this Court erred when Ordering the distribution of funds from the ELN Trust to
pay for Mr. Nelson’s personal obligations, the Court is obligated to return the
funds from the source of the distribution, the ELN Trust. Therefore, transferring
the funds from one blocked account to a separate frozen account is improper at
this time.

C. A Joint Preliminary Injunction for the Banone, LL.C. and Lindell

Properties is Appropriate Because Both Properties Are Involved In A
Claim of Community Property

In its April 19, 2018 Order, this Court did not address the request for a
Joint Preliminary Injunction for the Banone, LL.C. and Lindell Properties. Eighth
Judicial District Court Rule 5.517 states that “[u]pon the request of any party at
any time prior to the entry of...final judgment, a preliminary injunction will be
issued by the clerk against the parties to the action enjoining them and their
officers, agents, servant, employees, or a person in active concert or participation
with them from: transferring, encumbering, concealing, selling, or otherwise
disposing of...any property that is the subject of a claim of community
interest...”

Both the Banone, LLC. and Lindell Properties are subject to a claim of
community interest. As such, both properties are entitled to a Joint Preliminary
Injunction to ensure that the properties remain intact prior to the completion of

tracing and the final judgment of this Court. However, while this Court is aware

PSAPP0342
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that multiple Notices of Lis Pendens regarding both properties have been filed, a
Joint Preliminary Injunction on the properties is appropriate and will be granted.
Furthermore, considering the extensive litigation costs incurred to date, this Court
is issuing this decision prior to any Opposition being filed by Mr. Nelson or the
ELN Trust and any Reply by Ms. Nelson. Therefore, any potential Oppositions
and Reply will be reviewed and addressed accordingly as they are filed.

D. Any Funds Used to Purchase the Brian Head Property That Are

Considered Community Property Will Be Reimbursed Following the
Tracing of Assets in the ELN and LSN Trusts '

In its April 19, 2018 Order, this Court stated any financial transfers or
inequities found as a result of the tracing of assets would be settled after tracing
has been completed and the Court issues a final judgment. This Court also stated
that both the ELN and LSN Trusts have sufficient assets to offset any
deficiencies ultimately found once a final balance and distribution amount has
been determined. Therefore, in the event that the tracing finds that a share of
LSN’s property held within the ELN Trust was used to purchase the 50% interest
in the Brian Head Cabin, the LSN Trust will be entitled to a reimbursement of

said property.

PSAPP0343
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E. The June 5, 2018 Hearing Shall Be Vacated Based On This Court’s
Decision

As a result of Motions filed in this case, a Motion Hearing was set on this
Court’s calendar for June 5, 2018. As a result of this Decision, the June 5, 2018
Motion Hearing is hereby Vacated.

ORDER

Based thereon:

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED the this Court’s decision to start the tracing
of assets within the Eric L. Nelson Nevada Trust and the Lynita S. Nelson
Nevada Trust on May 30, 2001 is hereby AFFIRMED.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the release of the $720,000 from Bank
of Nevada Blocked Account #7502338705 to the ELN Trust is hereby
AFFIRMED.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the request to transfer the $720,000
from the Blocked Account into a separate frozen account is hereby DENIED.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the request for a Joint Preliminary
Injunction on the Banone, LLC. and Lindell Properties to prevent the transfer,
encumbrance, concealment, sale, or otherwise disposition of the properties 1s
hereby GRANTED.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that in the event that a complete tracing of

assets finds that the Eric L. Nelson Nevada Trust’s purchase of the 50% interest

PSAPP0344
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in the Brian Head Utah Cabin is made with community property, the Lynita S.
Nelson Nevada Trust is entitled to a reimbursement in the amount of the proceeds
determined to be Lynita Nelson’s portion of the community property used for
purchase.
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that any Stay of Order is hereby DENIED.
DATED this 2~ day of May, 2018.

—) _ i

Honofable Frank P. Sullivan
District Court Judge — Dept. O
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Steven D. Grierson
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the ERIC L. NELSON NEVADA
TRUST dated May 30, 2001,
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MATT KLABACKA, as Distribution
Trustee of the ERIC L. NELSON
NEVADA TRUST dated May 30, 2001,
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Robert Dickerson, Esq.
E-Service

Marc Solomon, Esq.
E-Service

PSAPP0346




e 0 3 & U A W N =

NN N NN N NN e e e e e b e e e
NN O A WY =S O 0N SN N R W N e

28

FRANK P. SULLIVAN
DISTRICT JUDGE

FAMILY DIVISION, DEPT. O
LAS VEGAS NV 89101

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that the DECISION AFFIRMING THE DATE OF
TRACING; DENYING A SEPARATE BLOCKED ACCOUNT FOR $720,000; AND
GRANTING A JOINT PRELIMINARY INJUNCTION FOR THE BANONE, LLC. AND
LINDELL PROPERTIES was duly entered in the above-referenced case on the 22nd day of
May, 2018.

DATED this & & day of May, 2018.

Lo P

Lori Parr
Judicial Executive Assistant
Dept. O

) PSAPP0347




o 0 N9 N N e W N

RN NN N N N e o e e e e e
A O A R R e S O 00NN AW N =D

27
28

Lz

DISTRICT JUDGE

FAMILY DIVISION, DEPT. O
LAS VEGAS NV 89104

CLERK OF THE CO
DISTRICT COURT w' ‘ i '

FAMILY DIVISION - JUVENILE
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

ERIC L. NELSON,

Plaintiff,
V.
LYNITA SUE NELSON, MATT
KLABACKA, as Distribution Trustee of
the ERIC L. NELSON NEVADA
TRUST dated May 30, 2001,

Defendants.

MATT KLABACKA, as Distribution

Trustee of the ERIC L. NELSON

NEVADA TRUST dated May 30, 2001,
Cross-claimant,

V.

LYNITA SUE NELSON,

Cross-defendant.

DECISION AFFIRMING THE DATE OF TRACING:; DENYING A
SEPARATE BLOCKED ACCOUNT FOR §$720,000; AND GRANTING A
JOINT PRELIMINARY INJUCTION FOR THE BANONE, LLC. AND

Electronically Filed
5/22/2018 8:41 AM
Steven D. Grierson

Case No.: D-09-411537-D
Dept. No.: O

LINDELL PROPERTIES
This matter was before the Court, pursuant to Lynita Nelson’s Motion for
Reconsideration and Clarification of the Court’s Decision Entered April 19, 2018,

and Lynita Nelson’s Ex Parte Motion for Issuance of Joint Preliminary

1
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Injunction. The Court, having reviewed all Motions, based thereon and good
cause appearing therefor:
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
A. May 30, 2001 is the Proper Date To Begin the Tracing Because the Nevada

Supreme Court Found and Held That the ELN and LSN Trusts Were
Funded With Separate Property

In its May 25, 2017 Order, the Nevada Supreme Court concluded that this
Court erred by “not tracing the assets contained within the trusts, either through a
reliable expert or other available means.”! The Nevada Supreme Court also held
that both the Eric L. Nelson Nevada Trust (“ELN Trust”) and the Lynita S.
Nelson Nevada Trust (“LSN Trust”) “are valid and the trusts were funded with
separate property stemming from a valid separate property agreement.”

In its April 19, 2018 Order, this Court did not address the tracing
performed in the underlying divorce proceeding. During the divorce proceeding,
this Court did not perform a tracing of assets contained within either the Eric L.
Nelson Nevada Trust (“ELN Trust”) or the Lynita S. Nelson Nevada Trust (“LSN
Trust™). In its May 25, 2017 Order, the Nevada Supreme Court found that “[i]n

2001, Eric and Lynita converted their separate property trusts into Eric’s Trust

and Lynita’s Trust, respectively, and funded the SSST’s with the separate

! Klabacka v. Nelson, 394 P.3d 940, 948 (Nev. 2017).
? Klabacka, 394 at 947.
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property contained within the separate property trusts.”

The Nevada Supreme
Court then held that both the ELN and LSN Trusts were funded with separate
property based on their findings.*

While this Court never performed a tracing of assets in the trusts in the
underlying divorce proceedings, the Nevada Supreme Court held that “the SSSTs
are valid and the trusts were funded with separate property stemming from a
valid separate property agreement.”5 Therefore, based upon the Nevada Supreme
Court’s finding and holding, this Court interprets the proper date to begin tracing

as May 30, 2001, the date on which both the ELN and LSN Trusts were executed.

B. The $720.000 Released to the ELN Trust Is A Valid Disbursement As the
Funds Were Allocated In Error

In its May 25, 2017 Order, the Nevada Supreme Court found that this
Court erred in Ordering the ELN Trust to pay the personal obligations of Mr.
Nelson with regard to a lump-sum alimony payment.® In response to the Nevada
Supreme Court’s holding, this Court Ordered the return of the $720,000 which
was paid by the ELN Trust and being held in a blocked account.

The sole purpose of the disbursement of the $720,000 was for the payment
of Mr. Nelson’s personal obligations. Otherwise, the funds would have remained

within the ELN Trust and be afforded all the protections of a Nevada Trust. As

3 1d. at 943.

Y 1d, at 947.

S1d.

6 Klabacka v, Nelson, 394 P.3d 940, 952 (Nev. 2017).

PSAPPO0350




this Court erred when Ordering the distribution of funds from the ELN Trust to
pay for Mr. Nelson’s personal obligations, the Court is obligated to return the
funds from the source of the distribution, the ELN Trust. Therefore, transferring

the funds from one blocked account to a separate frozen account is improper at

this time.
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C. A Joint Preliminary Injunction for the Banone, LL.C. and Lindell
Properties is Appropriate Because Both Properties Are Involved In A

10 Claim of Community Property
1 In its April 19, 2018 Order, this Court did not address the request for a
iz Joint Preliminary Injunction for the Banone, LLC. and Lindell Properties. Eighth
14|| Judicial District Court Rule 5.517 states that “[u]pon the request of any party at
15 any time prior to the entry of...final judgment, a preliminary injunction will be
:_6’ issued by the clerk against the parties to the action enjoining them and their
18|| officers, agents, servant, employees, or a person in active concert or participation
191 with them from: transferring, encumbering, concealing, selling, or otherwise
2(1) disposing of...any property that is the subject of a claim of community
22| interest...”
23 Both the Banone, LLC. and Lindell Properties are subject to a claim of
z: community interest. As such, both properties are entitled to a Joint Preliminary

| 26|| Injunction to ensure that the properties remain intact prior to the completion of
27 tracing and the final judgment of this Court. However, while this Court is aware
28
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that multiple Notices of Lis Pendens regarding both properties have been filed, a
Joint Preliminary Injunction on the properties is appropriate and will be granted.
Furthermore, considering the extensive litigation costs incurred to date, this Court
is issuing this decision prior to any Opposition being filed by Mr. Nelson or the

ELN Trust and any Reply by Ms. Nelson. Therefore, any potential Oppositions
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and Reply will be reviewed and addressed accordingly as they are filed.

10 D. Any Funds Used to Purchase the Brian Head Property That Are
1 Considered Community Property Will Be Reimbursed Following the
Tracing of Assets in the ELN and LSN Trusts
12
13 In its April 19, 2018 Order, this Court stated any financial transfers or
14|| inequities found as a result of the tracing of assets would be settled after tracing
15 has been completed and the Court issues a final judgment. This Court also stated
16
17 that both the ELN and LSN Trusts have sufficient assets to offset any
18|| deficiencies ultimately found once a final balance and distribution amount has
19 been determined. Therefore, in the event that the tracing finds that a share of
20
21 LSN’s property held within the ELN Trust was used to purchase the 50% interest
22|l in the Brian Head Cabin, the LSN Trust will be entitled to a reimbursement of
23 said property.
24
25
26
27
| 28
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E. The June S, 2018 Hearing Shall Be Vacated Based On This Court’s
Decision

As a result of Motions filed in this case, a Motion Hearing was set on this
Court’s calendar for June 5, 2018. As a result of this Decision, the June 5, 2018
Motion Hearing is hereby Vacated.

ORDER

Based thereon:

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED the this Court’s decision to start the tracing
of assets within the Eric L. Nelson Nevada Trust and the Lynita S. Nelson
Nevada Trust on May 30, 2001 is hereby AFFIRMED.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the release of the $720,000 from Bank
of Nevada Blocked Account #7502338705 to the ELN Trust is hereby
AFFIRMED.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the request to transfer the $720,000
from the Blocked Account into a separate frozen account is hereby DENIED.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the request for a Joint Preliminary
Injunction on the Banone, LLC. and Lindell Properties to prevent the transfer,
encumbrance, concealment, sale, or otherwise disposition of the properties is
hereby GRANTED.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that in the event that a complete tracing of

assets finds that the Eric L. Nelson Nevada Trust’s purchase of the 50% interest

PSAPPO0353
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in the Brian Head Utah Cabin is made with community property, the Lynita S.
Nelson Nevada Trust is entitled to a reimbursement in the amount of the proceeds
determined to be Lynita Nelson’s portion of the community property used for
purchase.
IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that any Stay of Order is hereby DENIED.
DATED this 2% "~ day of May, 2018.

)l

Honofable Frank P. Sullivan
District Court Judge — Dept. O
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21 Cross-defendant.
22 DECISION
23 )
) This matter was before the Court on January 31, 2018, pursuant to
4
25 Plaintiffs Motion to Enforce Supreme Court’s Order Dated May 25, 2017;
26 Motion to Hold Lynita S. Nelson in Contempt for Violation of September 22,
27
28 2014 Order; and for Attorneys’ Fees and Costs. The Court, having reviewed all
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Motions, Oppositions, Countermotions, and Replies filed in this matter between
July 10, 2017 and August 22, 2017, and having heard arguments of counsel,
based thereon and good cause appearing therefor:

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

On May 25, 2017, the Nevada Supreme Court filed an Order which
affirmed in part and vacated in part this Court’s June 3, 2013 Divorce Decree, and
remanded the matter back to this Court. On July 10, 2017, the Plaintiff, Eric
Nelson (“Mr. Nelson”) filed a Motion to compel the Defendants, Lynita Nelson
(“Ms. Nelson”) and Matt Klabacka (“ELN Trustee”), to follow the Supreme
Court’s Order. Several Oppositions, Countermotions, and Replies were filed by
all parties prior to a hearing before this Court on January 31, 2018, to address all
pending matters, the most important being the interpretation of the Nevada
Supreme Court’s Opinion with regard to the tracing of property within the trusts.

A. The Tracing of Property Contained Within the Eric L. Nelson Nevada Trust
and the Lynita S. Nelson Nevada Trust

In its May 25 Order, the Nevada Supreme Court concluded that this Court
erred by “not tracing the assets contained within the trusts, either through a
reliable expert or other available means.”’ The Nevada Supreme Court also held

that both the Eric L. Nelson Nevada Trust (“ELN Trust”) and the Lynita S.

! Klabacka v. Nelson, 394 P.3d 940, 948 (Nev. 2017).
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Nelson Nevada Trust (“LSN Trust”) “are valid and the trusts were funded with
separate property stemming from a valid separate property agreement.””

In accordance with the Nevada Supreme Court’s decision, this Court must
Order the tracing of property in both the trusts. In order for an accurate
accounting of the property in both the ELN and LSN Trusts to occur, this Court
must determine the correct date to commence tracing of the property in the trusts.
The Nevada Supreme Court held that both the ELN and LSN Trusts were funded
with separate property stemming from the 1993 Separate Property Agre:ement.3
As such, the proper date to begin the tracing would be May 30, 2001, the date
both the ELN and LSN Trusts were executed.

The Nevada Supreme Court concluded that the assets in the trusts need to
be traced through a reliable expert.* In order for the trusts to be properly traced,
this Court shall appoint Larry L. Bertsch, CPA (“Mr. Bertsch”) to perform the
tracing. In the interest of fairness in regards to payment, both parties will be
required to split the cost of Mr. Bertsch’s tracing, beginning with a $5,000
payment from each party for Mr. Bertsch’s initial retainer. The initial retainer

payment to Mr. Bertsch shall be paid within thirty days of the date of this Order.

B. The Lindell Property and Banone, LLC Properties

2 Klabacka, 394 at 947.
‘1d.
*1d. at 948
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In its May 25 Order, the Nevada Supreme Court vacated the Constructive
Trust held over the Lindell Property.” The Nevada Supreme Court also held that
“the issue of unjust enrichment was not tried by implied consent and, therefore,
[this Court] erred in considering it when fashioning its remedies.”

As the Nevada Supreme Court vacated the Constructive Trust held over the
Lindell Property, the LSN Trust must transfer its 50% interest in the Lindell
Property to the ELN Trust via Quitclaim Deed. Additionally, the LSN Trust shall
provide to the ELN Trust copies of any and all tenant leases for the Lindell
Property for the period of June 3, 2013 to the present. The LSN Trust shall also
provide to the ELN Trust quarterly accountings for the Lindell Property,
including any and all supporting documentation, for the period of June 3, 2013 to
the present. Supporting documentation is to include records as to gross profits
and expenses related thereto, including, but not limited to; general upkeep,
management fees, administrative fees/wages, and maintenance fees/wages.

As the Nevada Supreme Court held that this Court’s finding of unjust
enrichment was in error, the LSN Trust must transfer its 100% interest in the
Banone, LLC Properties to the ELN Trust via Quitclaim Deed. The LSN Trust
shall also provide to the ELN Trust quarterly accountings for the Banone, LLC

Properties, including any and all supporting documentation, for the period of

5 Id. at 953
51d.
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June 3, 2013 to the present. Supporting documentation is to include records as to
gross profits and expenses related thereto, including, but not limited to; general
upkeep, management fees, administrative fees/wages, and maintenance

fees/wages.

C. Sale of the Brian Head Cabin

The ELN and LSN Trusts each own a 50% interest in the Brian Head
Cabin (“Cabin”) in Utah. Upon the request of Ms. Nelson for funds to pay her
litigation costs and other general expenses, this Court shall Order that the Cabin
be sold. This Court previously Ordered that “both parties shall have the right of
first refusal should either Trust decide to sell its interest in the Brian Head
[Clabin.”’

In order to properly ensure that both parties are receiving the fair market
value of the Cabin, Mr. Bertsch will be appointed to conduct the assessment of
the property value via a property appraiser of his choosing. To avoid concerns
raised as to the objectiveness of the upcoming appraisal, Mr. Bertsch shall select
a property appraiser other than the previous property appraiser, if available. In the
interest of fairness in regards to payment, both parties will be required to split the

cost of the property assessment.

7 Divorce Decree filed June 3, 2013, pg. 46
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Upon receipt of a fair market value price for the Cabin, the ELN Trust is to
be given the right of first refusal and allowed to purchase the 50% interest owned
by the LSN Trust. In the event that a fair market value price for the Cabin cannot
be agreed upon by the parties, the Cabin is to be placed on the open market until
a valid offer is received. The ELN Trust will then be allowed to match the price
of the valid offer to purchase the 50% interest owned by the LSN Trust.

In the event that the ELN and LSN Trusts cannot agree on the value of a
valid offer, a realtor of Mr. Bertsch’s choosing shall determine the validity of the
offer and conduct the sale of the property accordingly. All fees and costs
associated with the sale of the Cabin shall be shared equally between the ELN
and LSN Trusts.

D. $720.000 in Bank of Nevada Account 7502338705

In its May 25, 2017 Order, the Nevada Supreme Court found that this Court
erred in Ordering the ELN Trust to pay the personal obligations of Mr. Nelson
with regard to alimony payments.®

On November 15, 2013, this Court Ordered the ELN Trust to transfer
$1,068,000 to Bank of Nevada Account 7502338705. This account, which was
set up as a blocked account to assist in paying Mr. Nelson’s personal obligations

with regard to alimony and child support, still holds $720,000. As the Nevada

¥ Klabacka v. Nelson, 394 P.3d 940, 952 (Nev. 2017).

PSAPP0296




o 0 N N AW N

N N N NN N NN e e e e e e

28

FRANK P. SULLIVAN
DISTRICT JUDGE

FAMILY DIVISION, DEPT. O
LAS VEGAS NV 89101

Supreme Court held that this Court erred in ordering the ELN Trust to pay Mr.
Nelson’s personal obligations, and as these funds are still readily available to be
dispersed, this Court will Order the $720,000 to be transferred from the Bank of
Nevada blocked account to an account of the ELN Trust’s choosing.

E. All Remaining Financial Issues

Both the ELN and LSN Trusts have requested numerous financial transfers
based on both this Court’s June 3, 2013 Divorce Decree, as well as the Nevada
Supreme Court’s May 25, 2017 Order, including but not limited to: rents
allocated from both the Banone, LLC and Lindell Properties; $324,000 paid to
Lynita Nelson from the Bank of Nevada blocked account; a $6,050 security
deposit paid to the LSN Trust by the ELN Trust; payments collected by the LSN
Trust pursuant to the Farmouth Circle Note; and $75,000 paid to the LSN Trust
by Banone-AZ, LLC.

However, the Nevada Supreme Court concluded that the matter of tracing
needs to occur to make an accurate accounting of property in both trusts.”
Therefore, it is this Court’s opinion that before any financial transfers are to take
place, the tracing of both trusts must occur to ensure the proper transfers occur.
This Court has reviewed the assets of both the ELN and LSN Trusts and has

determined that there are sufficient assets in both trusts to offset any deficiency

® Klabacka, 394 P.3d at 948.
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once a final balance and distribution amount has been determined. Once the
tracing is finalized and a final balance sheet is received, this Court will Order the
proper funds to be transferred to each party accordingly.

ORDER

Based thereon:

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Larry Bertsch, CPA is to trace the
property in both the Eric L. Nelson Nevada Trust and the Lynita S. Nelson
Nevada Trust beginning from the execution date of May 30, 2001 through the
date of the Divorce Decree, June 3, 2013.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the tracing services provided by Larry
Bertsch, CPA is to be paid equally by both Eric Nelson and Lynita Nelson,
beginning with an initial payment of $5,000 each. This payment shall be made
within thirty days of the date of this Order.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Lynita S. Nelson Nevada Trust
execute Quitclaim Deeds to transfer the Lindell Rd. and Banone, LLC Properties
to the Eric L. Nelson Nevada Trust. The transfer of the property shall be
completed within thirty days of the date of this Order

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Larry Bertsch, CPA is to acquire an
appraisal for the Brian Head Utah Cabin from an appraiser of his choosing. Mr.

Bertsch is to select an appraiser different from the original appraiser, if different
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appraiser is available. Once received, the Eric L. Nelson Nevada Trust has the
right of first refusal on any offer on the property with the ability to purchase the
Lynita S. Nelson Nevada Trust’s 50% interest.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that in the event that the Eric L. Nelson
Nevada Trust and the Lynita S. Nelson Nevada Trust cannot agree on a valid
offer, Larry Bertsch, CPA, is to retain a realtor to place the property on the open
market for a fair market offer. Once the realtor determines that a fair offer has
been received, the Eric L. Nelson Nevada Trust has the right of first refusal on
any offer on the property with the ability to purchase the Lynita S. Nelson
Nevada Trust’s 50% interest.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that any appraisal and realtor costs
associated with the Brian Head Utah Cabin sale will be paid equally by both Eric
L. Nelson Nevada Trust and the Lynita S. Nelson Nevada Trust.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the $720,000.00 being held in Bank of
Nevada Account 7502338705 be released to an account of the Eric L. Nelson
Nevada Trust’s choosing.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that any Stay of Order is hereby DENIED.

DATED this_/ § /May of April, 2018.

'ﬁ// L

Hondrable Frank P. Sullivan
District Court Judge — Dept. O
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Motions, Oppositions, Countermotions, and Replies filed in this matter between
July 10, 2017 and August 22, 2017, and having heard arguments of counsel,
based thereon and good cause appearing therefor:

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

On May 25, 2017, the Nevada Supreme Court filed an Order which
affirmed in part and vacated in part this Court’s June 3, 2013 Divorce Decree, and
remanded the matter back to this Court. On July 10, 2017, the Plaintiff, Eric
Nelson (“Mr. Nelson”) filed a Motion to compel the Defendants, Lynita Nelson
(“Ms. Nelson”) and Matt Klabacka (“ELN Trustee”), to follow the Supreme
Court’s Order. Several Oppositions, Countermotions, and Replies were filed by
all parties prior to a hearing before this Court on January 31, 2018, to address all
pending matters, the most important being the interpretation of the Nevada
Supreme Court’s Opinion with regard to the tracing of property within the trusts.

A. The Tracing of Property Contained Within the Eric L. Nelson Nevada Trust
and the Lvnita S. Nelson Nevada Trust

In its May 25 Order, the Nevada Supreme Court concluded that this Court
erred by “not tracing the assets contained within the trusts, either through a
reliable expert or other available means.”' The Nevada Supreme Court also held

that both the Eric L. Nelson Nevada Trust (“ELN Trust”) and the Lynita S.

! Klabacka v. Nelson, 394 P.3d 940, 948 (Nev. 2017).

2
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Nelson Nevada Trust (“LSN Trust”) “are valid and the trusts were funded with
separate property stemming from a valid separate property agreement.”’

In accordance with the Nevada Supreme Court’s decision, this Court must
Order the tracing of property in both the trusts. In order for an accurate

accounting of the property in both the ELN and LSN Trusts to occur, this Court

must determine the correct date to commence tracing of the property in the trusts.
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10{| The Nevada Supreme Court held that both the ELN and LSN Trusts were funded
i with separate property stemming from the 1993 Separate Property Agreement.3
ij As such, the proper date to begin the tracing would be May 30, 2001, the date
14!|| both the ELN and LSN Trusts were executed.

15 The Nevada Supreme Court concluded that the assets in the trusts need to
:: be traced through a reliable expert.* In order for the trusts to be properly traced,
18|| this Court shall appoint Larry L. Bertsch, CPA (“Mr. Bertsch”) to perform the
19 tracing. In the interest of fairness in regards to payment, both parties will be

2(1) required to split the cost of Mr. Bertsch’s tracing, beginning with a $5,000

22|| payment from each party for Mr. Bertsch’s initial retainer. The initial retainer
23 payment to Mr. Bertsch shall be paid within thirty days of the date of this Order.
;: B. The Lindell Property and Banone, LLC Properties

26

27

2 Klabacka, 394 at 947,
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4 1d. at 948
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In its May 25 Order, the Nevada Supreme Court vacated the Constructive
Trust held over the Lindell Property.” The Nevada Supreme Court also held that
“the issue of unjust enrichment was not tried by implied consent and, therefore,
[this Court] erred in considering it when fashioning its remedies.”®

As the Nevada Supreme Court vacated the Constructive Trust held over the

Lindell Property, the LSN Trust must transfer its 50% interest in the Lindell
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10|| Property to the ELN Trust via Quitclaim Deed. Additionally, the LSN Trust shall
1 provide to the ELN Trust copies of any and all tenant leases for the Lindell
12
13 Property for the period of June 3, 2013 to the present. The LSN Trust shall also
14|| provide to the ELN Trust quarterly accountings for the Lindell Property,
15 including any and all supporting documentation, for the period of June 3, 2013 to
16
17 the present. Supporting documentation is to include records as to gross profits
18 and expenses related thereto, including, but not limited to; general upkeep,
19 management fees, administrative fees/wages, and maintenance fees/wages.
20
21 As the Nevada Supreme Court held that this Court’s finding of unjust
22 enrichment was in error, the LSN Trust must transfer its 100% interest in the
23] Banone, LLC Properties to the ELN Trust via Quitclaim Deed. The LSN Trust
24
25 shall also provide to the ELN Trust quarterly accountings for the Banone, LLC
26 Properties, including any and all supporting documentation, for the period of
27
3 1d. at 953
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June 3, 2013 to the present. Supporting documentation is to include records as to
gross profits and expenses related thereto, including, but not limited to; general
upkeep, management fees, administrative fees/wages, and maintenance
fees/wages.

C. Sale of the Brian Head Cabin

The ELN and LSN Trusts each own a 50% interest in the Brian Head
Cabin (“Cabin”) in Utah. Upon the request of Ms. Nelson for funds to pay her
litigation costs and other general expenses, this Court shall Order that the Cabin
be sold. This Court previously Ordered that “both parties shall have the right of
first refusal should either Trust decide to sell its interest in the Brian Head
[Clabin.”’

In order to properly ensure that both parties are receiving the fair market
value of the Cabin, Mr. Bertsch will be appointed to conduct the assessment of
the property value via a property appraiser of his choosing. To avoid concerns
raised as to the objectiveness of the upcoming appraisal, Mr. Bertsch shall select
a property appraiser other than the previous property appraiser, if available. In the
interest of fairness in regards to payment, both parties will be required to split the

cost of the property assessment.

7 Divorce Decree filed June 3, 2013, pg. 46
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Upon receipt of a fair market value price for the Cabin, the ELN Trust is to
be given the right of first refusal and allowed to purchase the 50% interest owned
by the LSN Trust. In the event that a fair market value price for the Cabin cannot
be agreed upon by the parties, the Cabin is to be placed on the open market until

a valid offer is received. The ELN Trust will then be allowed to match the price
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of the valid offer to purchase the 50% interest owned by the LSN Trust.

In the event that the ELN and LSN Trusts cannot agree on the value of a

10

1 alid offer, a realtor of Mr. Bertsch’s choosing shall determine the validity of the
:z offer and conduct the sale of the property accordingly. All fees and costs

14|| associated with the sale of the Cabin shall be shared equally between the ELN
15 and LSN Trusts.

16

17 D. $720,000 in Bank of Nevada Account 7502338705

18 In its May 25, 2017 Order, the Nevada Supreme Court found that this Court
19 erred in Ordering the ELN Trust to pay the personal obligations of Mr. Nelson
2(1' with regard to alimony payments.®

22 On November 15, 2013, this Court Ordered the ELN Trust to transfer

231 $1,068,000 to Bank of Nevada Account 7502338705, This account, which was
z: set up as a blocked account to assist in paying Mr. Nelson’s personal obligations
26| with regard to alimony and child support, still holds $720,000. As the Nevada
27

28 ¥ Klabacka v. Nelson, 394 P.3d 940, 952 (Nev. 2017).
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Supreme Court held that this Court erred in ordering the ELN Trust to pay Mr.
Nelson’s personal obligations, and as these funds are still readily available to be
dispersed, this Court will Order the $720,000 to be transferred from the Bank of
Nevada blocked account to an account of the ELN Trust’s choosing.

E. All Remaining Financial Issues

Both the ELN and LSN Trusts have requested numerous financial transfers
based on both this Court’s June 3, 2013 Divorce Decree, as well as the Nevada
Supreme Court’s May 25, 2017 Order, including but not limited to: rents
allocated from both the Banone, LLC and Lindell Properties; $324,000 paid to
Lynita Nelson from the Bank of Nevada blocked account; a $6,050 security
deposit paid to the LSN Trust by the ELN Trust; payments collected by the LSN
Trust pursuant to the Farmouth Circle Note; and $75,000 paid to the LSN Trust
by Banone-AZ, LLC.

However, the Nevada Supreme Court concluded that the matter of tracing
needs to occur to make an accurate accounting of property in both trusts.’
Therefore, it is this Court’s opinion that before any financial transfers are to take
place, the tracing of both trusts must occur to ensure the proper transfers occur.
This Court has reviewed the assets of both the ELN and LSN Trusts and has

determined that there are sufficient assets in both trusts to offset any deficiency

® Klabacka, 394 P.3d at 948,
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once a final balance and distribution amount has been determined. Once the
tracing is finalized and a final balance sheet is received, this Court will Order the
proper funds to be transferred to each party accordingly.

ORDER

Based thereon:

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Larry Bertsch, CPA is to trace the
property in both the Eric L. Nelson Nevada Trust and the Lynita S. Nelson
Nevada Trust beginning from the execution date of May 30, 2001 through the
date of the Divorce Decree, June 3, 2013.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the tracing services provided by Larry
Bertsch, CPA is to be paid equally by both Eric Nelson and Lynita Nelson,
beginning with an initial payment of $5,000 each. This payment shall be made
within thirty days of the date of this Order.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Lynita S. Nelson Nevada Trust
execute Quitclaim Deeds to transfer the Lindell Rd. and Banone, LLC Properties
to the Eric L. Nelson Nevada Trust. The transfer of the property shall be
completed within thirty days of the date of this Order

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that Larry Bertsch, CPA is to acquire an
appraisal for the Brian Head Utah Cabin from an appraiser of his choosing. Mr.

Bertsch is to select an appraiser different from the original appraiser, if different

8
PSAPP0309




